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Financial data
(expressed in HK$000)

Including continuing operations and
discontinued operations

Revenue

Gross (loss) profit

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Loss before interest, tax, depreciation

2019

38,307
(2,574)

(1,045,306)

931,111

(391,978)

6919

(0.090)

0.68
0.67

MiERI B8 and amortisation

EREHEB NGB Deficiency attributable

to owners of the Company

WEEME BB KRB Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

NATHEE NEMEER  Net liability attributable to owners
FEEE (BT) of the Company per share (HK$)

(Brzzr) (note /)

ML E Financial ratios

mENLEE (H3E2) Current ratio (note 2)

RENLEE (H3E3) Quick ratio (note 3)

Wizt - Note:

I AAREBEAN = AAAEBA - EREBEGRM I, Net liability attributable =
ELEREE i3y g #H to owners of the
& Company per share

2 MELLE = RYEE + RBER 2. Current ratio

3 EFHE = T(_Fiﬁ)ﬁ}? + TBEE 3. Quick ratio

74

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2021F K

Inventories)

Deficiency attributable to +
owners of the Company

= Current assets

= (Current assets -

2020

27,783
4,707

(1,061,359)

(1,104,753)

(1551,312)

4,698

(0.355)

0.0l
0.0l

2021

9,100
8,020

(76,499)

(70,615)

(1,677,230)

3

(0.384)

0.04
0.04

Number of issued shares
at year end

= Current liabilities

—~— Current liabilities
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RESULTS SUMMARY

The Group has been operating in an extremely challenging market
environment, where the worldwide economy had been fluctuating and full of

uncertainties.

The turnover for the year 2021 was approximately HK$9 million whereas
that of 2020 was approximately HK$26 million. The loss for the year 2021
was approximately HK$74 million entirely from continuing operations,
which would be a net profit of approximately HK$4 million for the year
from continuing operations after excluding the effects of the following
non-recurring profit and loss factors: (1) the financial guarantee contract
liabilities of approximately HK$399 million; and (2) other gains and losses of
approximately HK$321 million (mainly consist of the gain on deconsolidation
of a subsidiary of approximately HK$295 million and the gain on bargain
purchase of approximately HK$20 million (please refer to Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements for details)), while the loss for the
year 2020 from continuing operations and discontinued operations was

approximately HK$348 million and HK$875 million, respectively.

The Group has continued to strive for the commercial opportunity in
development and operation of wind power resources and seek to facilitate
cooperation in the development of target projects based on the preliminary
market work to achieve its financial goals. The Group has entered into
several technical services agreements in relation to the development of wind
farms with the business partners. Phased works under the agreements are

completed by the Group.

Furthermore, the Group has obtained the control over Aerospace Long
Yuan (Benxi) Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Benxi") on 28 December
2021. As the result, the financial results and position of Longyuan Benxi are
consolidated to those of the Group with effect from 28 December 2021.
However, since the results for the current year before 27 December 2021
cannot be consolidated into the Group's annual results, the operating results
of wind farms decreased significantly as compared with the same period in
2020.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group implemented development services for several key new energy
projects, and has realised revenue and profit. The Group has also signed
certain agreements with various local governments for cooperation in the
development of new energy projects to actively solidify the foundation of
its main new energy business. The Group relied on the resources of CASC
to further expand its wind farm operations business and international

engineering business.

New Energy Development Business

Leveraging on the market resources accumulated over a long time in the field
of new energy, the Group has actively expanded its new energy development
business, and has signed several project contracts and generated revenue
and profit from the new energy development service business. At the same
time, the Group has signed three cooperation framework agreements with
the local governments under Inner Mongolia, Sichuan and Guangdong for
the development of new energy projects, and will gradually carry out the
development, construction and grid-connected operation of the new energy
projects, laying a foundation for the sustainable development of new energy

development business.

Wind Farm Operations

The wind farms operated by the Group include the Longyuan Benxi wind
farm, which provides a capacity of 24,650KW with 29 sets of 850KW wind
turbines. In addition to the abovementioned Longyuan Benxi wind farm,
the two wind farms invested in and operated by the Group include the
Jilin Longyuan Tongyu wind farm providing a capacity of 200,000KW with
236 sets of 850KW wind turbines; the Jiangsu Longyuan Rudong wind farm
providing a capacity of 150,000KW with 100 sets of [.5MW wind turbines.
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MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

The main business of the Group needs to be enhanced. The Group remains

the wind farm operations as the only continuing operation.

As the Company’s guarantee obligations of approximately RMBI.15 billion
provided to ASTF is triggered, the Group's liquidity is under great pressure
to meet operational needs and fulfill its debt obligations for the time being.
The management has negotiated with the controlling shareholder a package
solution including extending grace period for guaranteed debt and providing
cash flow support, while the final implementation of the above plan is still

uncertain.

For the five major risk categories in 2021 as assessed by the Group, namely
policy risks, operational risks, financing risks, safety risks and legal risks, the
Company has devised corresponding risk management and control measures,

the details of which are as follows:

(1) Policy Risks

Since 2020, the general environment for the development and
utilization of new energy in China has become clearer, and encouraging
policies have been issued frequently, which is beneficial for the
Company to identify business opportunities in the new energy
field. However, due to developing new energy projects in a highly
competitive market, coupled with the limited resource endowment,
there are still certain uncertainties on how to make good use of
policies to quickly integrate various elements and resources required
for project development to achieve financial goals. The Group will
continue to closely monitor the changes in national industrial policies

and the prospective study on industry development.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Operational Risks

Although the new energy industry enjoys long-term promising
prospects, the Group is still under pressure to further adjust and
consolidate its business structure due to the small scale of its main
business and single business structure, and its anti-risk capability needs

to be improved.

Financing Risks

Resulted from the termination of the wind turbine manufacture
business, the Group's debt financing ability faced a great challenge.
The Company has lost ability to obtain financing due to the high debt
to asset ratio. The Group is actively pursuing the strong support from
the controlling shareholder to provide supplemental liquidity to the

Group's relief and business improvement plan.

Safety Risks

Wind farm operations involve hot-line work, especially in the repair
and maintenance of wind turbines and related equipment, there are
certain safety risks in aerial work. It is necessary to strengthen the
implementation of management regulations on safety operation to

eliminate unsafe behaviors and prevent and avoid such risks.

Legal Risks

The Group was notified by the Beijing First Intermediate People's
Court on |6 August 2020 that it had accepted the bankruptcy
administrator's suit against the Group's subsidiary, New Image
Development Limited, for unpaid capital contribution of approximately
RMBI55 million with a request that the Company bears joint and
several liabilities. The Group has engaged professional legal counsel to
assist in responding to the lawsuit and upon analysis of the preliminary
legal opinion, the claim of joint and several liabilities against the
Company is unlikely to be valid. The relevant financial impact has been
reflected in the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 2021.
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PROSPECTS

With the introduction of the central government's specific action plan for
peak carbon dioxide emissions, the long-term development goals of clean
energy have been clarified. By 2025, the proportion of non-fossil energy
consumption will reach about 20%; by 2030, the proportion of non-fossil
energy consumption will reach about 25%, and the total installed capacity of
wind power and solar power will reach more than 1.2 billion kilowatts. The
new energy field will complete the transition from the stimulus of central

financial subsidies to the long-term market-driven growth.

China will continue to promote industrial and energy structure adjustment,
and the nine clean energy bases and five offshore wind power bases planned
during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period will become important sources of
newly installed wind and solar power. The Group will make full use of CASC's
advantages in resources to conduct new energy project development
business and actively explore business opportunities along the “Belt and
Road"”,

The National Energy Administration has issued relevant documents to
encourage wind farms to carry out capacity expansion or equal-capacity
transformation, and clarified that the electricity price of subsidised electricity
will remain unchanged. In the context of the remarkable progress in
wind power technology and equipment in recent years, coupled with
the government's incentive policies, the Group will promote the capacity
expansion and upgrading of existing wind farm projects to fully release the

economic benefits of wind farm projects.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 10 employees (2020: |3
employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 28 employees (2020:
9 employees) in the offices of the PRC. Remuneration of employee
is determined according to individual employee's performance and the
prevailing trends in different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The
Group also provides Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its
employees. In addition, discretionary performance bonus is available at the

discretion of the Directors.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

All the borrowings of the Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") as
at 31 December 2021. As Beijing Energine Industry Co., Ltd. is no longer
included in the scope of consolidation, the aggregate principal and interest
of the guaranteed debts assumed by the Group as at 3| December 2021
and 31 December 2020 due to its guarantee obligations for its borrowings
amounted to HK$1,439 million and HK$I,005 million respectively. The
abovementioned borrowings were determined at market interest rate. The

Group has not issued any financial instrument for hedging or other purpose.

Financial Ratio

As at 3| December 2021, the Group's debt to asset ratio was 5.49,
represented by the ratio of total liabilities to total assets (2020: 7.76).

Financial Position

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a combination
of internal resources generated from operations and borrowings. The Group
had cash and cash equivalents of HK$3 1 million as at 31 December 2021, an
increase of HK$I1 million compared to HK$20 million as at 31 December
2020.

Distribution to Shareholders

There was no distribution to the Company's shareholders in the year 2021
(2020: nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, no material assets have been pledged (2020: nil).



BIRE R R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BE 52 Bk

FEBZABDEZRZEUARES
Bo-FBHAEEMNE R RERERT FEE
O ST A g E o

RARR

HUOEARBDHBEA-Z_ZFE+-ANH
M AMPTIRE R ABBE—KEERTH
R BRREAEER—RBE QB HEH
ﬁ%*&ﬁ%%é%%k%%%&m%ﬁ%
ERNER tENERAZS—<ENA
:+_EEE$@E%$zmﬂEEﬂ§
EHERE ((TBEEMESZERY)  EXRAQF
BIIAEHAEERROBRETHEERS
MRITER- N2 ZF=A+WA K
EBWBIE AR BB > & £R1T
HAEEINAZE=WE  ERAEERZR
HRERBRREST REZMOLS DM
ZR M EARN ) AE B EAEER
B At BEFRRAEER

HEFmES AEBCZEPEEZENER
B ZRZHITHZEEMEETEREE
BEEINZEERUERRE ~E@E
EERMIZEENBEER REMEE
o UM ERARB G ARG UEREER
BUABHEANEERRRAMKEEESR
BLEEEZAREAER

BEREN R_BE_—F+-RB=+—
R #£EBITBEAEARRER (TEZ
BEF) e

Exchange Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

Disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2020,
the Company received a letter from a commercial bank that there might
be a situation where an associate of the Group may fail to timely repay the
aggregated loans of approximately RMB358 million, and two letters dated 22
April 2016 with the chop of the Company (the “Project Finance Letters")
were attached, requesting the Company to fulfill its commitment to allocate
its capital to ensure the full repayment of the bank loans in the future. On 14
March 2022, the Group received a notice of responding to action from the
local court, pursuant to which the commercial bank listed the Group as the
third defendant and requested the Group to assume corresponding liability
to guarantee for the letters. According to lawyer's preliminary analysis, the
letters had no legal effect, and the Group should not assume the liability to

guarantee. Therefore, no provision was required for contingent liabilities.

For the time being, the Group has engaged PRC legal advisor to handle this
legal case and has reservation on the legal validity of the Project Finance
Letters and the related legal implication, the Group will continue to monitor
the subsequent progress, reserve the right to defend, in order to protect the
legal rights and interests of the Company and will inform its shareholders and
other investors of any material development in relation to the above issues

by way of announcements as and when appropriate.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Qingping, aged 58, master degree holder, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 7 November 2019. Mr. Han was
appointed as chief executive officer on 2 December 2019 and re-designated

as Chairman and authorized representative on |5 April 2021.

Mr. Han served as deputy general manager of Beijing Energine, vice chairman
and general manager of Ares. Co. and president of China Asia Pacific Mobile
Communications Satellite Co,, Ltd. from 2004 to 2016, as president of China
Changzheng Rocket Co,, Ltd. from May 2016 to September 2017 and as vice-
chairman of China Changzheng Rocket Co., Ltd. from September 2017 to
October 2019.

Mr. Li Lei, aged 49, master degree holder; was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 18 March 2020. Mr. Li was appointed as vice-
chairman on 18 March 2020 and re-designated as chief executive officer on
I5 April 2021.

Mr. Li served at a good amount of departments of CALT, since 1996,
including vice-chief of the Industrial Development Department, vice-chief
of the Business and Investment Department, head of management office of
Human Resource Department and head of management office of Operation
and Investment Department of CALT. Mr. Li has been the director of
Astrotech since August 2018.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 54, master degree holder, qualified as a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Xu was appointed as
an executive Director and financial controller with effect from | November
2014.

Since November 2005, he had successively been the Chief Accountant with
subsidiaries of CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control Engineering
Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research Institute of

Materials & Processing Technology.
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Mr. Wang Guanghui, aged 52, master degree holder, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 2 December 2019 and vice — chief

executive officer with effect from 7 November 2019,

Mr. Wang served as head of the finance department of nineteen office of
CALT from 2002 to 2009. He has been head of capital operation office and
investment management office of Business and Investment Department of
CALT from 2009 to 2018 and head of capital operation office of Industrial
Development Department of CALT from 2018 to October 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, age 51, master degree holder, is currently a
practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Lau is currently the company secretary of BBMG Corporation
(stock code: 2009.HK) since August 2008, the company secretary of HM
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8416.HK) since August 2020,
an executive Director of Future World Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 572.HK) since January 2014, an independent non-executive director
of Sinopharm Tech Holdings Limited (stock code: 8156.HK) since January
2020, Artini Holdings Limited (stock code: 789.HK) since April 2008,
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (stock code: [192.HK) since March
2014 and Renco Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as “HKBridge
Financial Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 2323.HK) since March 2016. Mr.
Lau was an independent non-executive director of Winto Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8238.HK) between April 2019 and November 2019,
an independent non-executive director of Tenwow International Holdings
Limited, the share of which were formerly listed as [1219.HK between
November 2018 and November 2020, and a non-executive director of
Alltronics Holdings Limited (stock code: 833. HK) between March 2017 and
December 2018.
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Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 58, master degree holder, he was qualified as a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and Hong Kong in 1994. He has been
the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital Market, Asia of an international law
firm since July 2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin
Brown & Wood, Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan
& Hartson, Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 1100) and ZTE Corporation (stock code: 763), the companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 66, PhD degree holder, processing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had
been the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the
years 2001 to 2003; Chief Information Officer, and Chairman of Technology
Management Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the
years from 2003 to 2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial
Technology during the years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013
to May 2015. He has been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial
Group, offering the perspective on technology and risk management to the
group since June 2015. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive
director of LUZHENG FUTURES Company Limited (stock code: 1461).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shen Jian, aged 59, a senior engineer, graduated from China Textile
University majoring in mechanical design. For the period from 1993 to 2011,
he has been an engineer of the technology department, deputy director and
director of the equipment factory of Beijing Long March Hitech Corporation,
general manager of Beijing Aerospace Sanjin Technology Development
Company, and deputy general manager and general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen has over |2 years of extensive experience
in the wind power equipment manufacturing industry. He was appointed
as an assistant to president of the Company in February 2011 and was

appointed as a Vice President of the Company since 30 March 2017.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 26 and 27

respectively, to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on pages 76 to 77.

The Directors adopt a dividend policy on 24 December 2019. Detail terms

of the policy are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 3| December 2021. No dividend has been declared by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business performance, business review, financial review as well as prospects
and strategies of the Group are set out in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis™ in this annual report. Certain key financial indicators
are provided in the section “Group Financial Highlights™ in this annual report.
Since the end of the financial year under review, save as disclosed in this
annual report, there are no significant events that have a material impact on

the Group.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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CHARITABLE DONATION

There was no donation made by the Group during the year (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 2| to the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2021, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021, calculated
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to nil (2020: nil). The share
premium account of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Articles and
provided that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts immediately as they fall due

in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date

of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qingping
Mr. Li Lei
Mr. Xu Jun
Mr.Wang Guanghui
Mr. Liu Zhiwei
(resigned on 15 April 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Each of executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a specific term. Each of independent non-executive

Directors was appointed or re-appointed with a fixed term of 3 years.

Pursuant to the article no. |16 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation and a
retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which he
retires, and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. In this connection, Mr. Li
Lei, Mr Wang Guanghui and Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence shall retire from office at
the conclusion of the 2022 AGM and they, being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of her or his independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors have been independent from throughout the year ended
to 31 December 2021 and remain independent as of the date of this annual

report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2022 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors are proposed by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board, having regard to the Company's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics, subject to the final

decision at the discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” in this annual
report, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any controlling shareholder (as

defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the
directors and officers of the Group shall be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from or against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their offices provided that
such indemnity does not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or

dishonesty.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company or their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of the Group as are

required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and
the amount of each of such persons’ interest in such securities or in any

options in respect of such capital were as follows:

RRiEBRSE DL
Approximately

21 813 Ledb g o g= ] Percentage of
Name Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
HfnAa BBEREG B (Wat2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CASC Interest of a controlled corporation

(Note 2)
K FT PR BBEREG B R (Wat2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CALT Interest of a controlled corporation

(Note 2)
Astrotech BmEEA Wit2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Astrotech Beneficial owner (Note 2)
Miat - Note:

FLERERERNHZRE

2. ZERMANE 2 EH A A B)Astrotech
FR - ANERATMENZENBAZ %
RESRAERA PRERAERBEES
BB AstrotechFF52,649,244,0008% B2 14 2 &
o

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the Shares.
2. These shares are held by Astrotech, a company wholly owned by CALT. CALT is

a wholly-owned subsidiary of CASC. By virtue of the SFO, CASC and CALT are
deemed to be interested in the 2,649,244,000 Shares held by Astrotech.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2021,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any

member of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules:

Connected Transactions

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had a guarantee and a counter
guarantee totaling HK$1,758,472,000 or RMB1,480,000,000 issued to CALT
in respect of certain borrowings lent to a former subsidiary of the Company
from CALT and ASTF. Under the guarantees, the Company was liable for all
or any of the borrowings of each of them from CALT and ASTF upon failure

of the guaranteed former subsidiary to make payments when due.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any financial guarantee
contract liabilities as all the borrowings from CALT and ASTF were due
and defaulted during the year and amounts due under financial guarantee
contract liabilities were transferred to amount to an intermediate holding
company, as set out in notes 34 and 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Since CALT and CASC are intermediate major shareholder and ultimate
major shareholder, of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's
subsidiary, the loans were connected transactions yet they were exempted
from requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders' approval by
virtue of interests relating to the loans being of commercial terms or better
to Beijing Energine and no security made for the loans under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions disclosed above also constitute
related party transactions under the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. Save as the connected transactions disclosed above, no other
related party transactions are connected transactions under Chapter [4A of

the Listing Rules.

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year was

disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, turnover attributable to the only
customer of the Group accounted for 100% of the Group's turnover. None
of the Directors, their associates or; to the best knowledge of the Directors,
any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share

capital had any interests in the above customer.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum
public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 3| December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance
practices. A detailed Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the

year is set out on pages 26 to 45 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

A detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for

the vear is set out on pages 46 to 70 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent events after 3|

December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 AGM is currently planned to be held on 30 June 2022. A notice
convening the 2022 AGM and all other relevant documents will be published

and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by RSM who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-

appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Qingping
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices
and explains the application of the principles in the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Year") and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to

the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices
are fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of
a company and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of

shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices
set out in the CG Code throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in the Model Code. The Company had made specific enquiries of
each Director, all Directors have complied with such code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions throughout

the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility, and to avoid power

concentrating in any one individual.
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The chairman of the Board is mainly responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices
and procedures; and appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their views are communicated to
the Board as a whole. The chief executive officer of the Group, supported
by the executive directors and senior management, is mainly responsible
for managing the Group's businesses, including the implementation of major

strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qingping
Mr. Li Lei
Mr. Xu Jun
Mr.Wang Guanghui
Mr. Liu Zhiwei
(resigned on 15 April 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

Save as disclosed in this section, to the best knowledge of the Company,

there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship

among the members of the Board.
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Meetings of the Board (the “Board Meetings") are held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of the year
are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days' notice is given to Directors
so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for the Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of
a conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of
which all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each

other.

Apart from the regular Board Meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held a meeting with all independent non-executive Directors, without the

presence of the other executive Directors.

During the Year, 13 Board Meetings, | annual general meeting of the
Company (2021 AGM") were held, at which the attendance of each

Director is set out as follows:

(HE 847 FERY
Number of Meetings
(Attended/Held)

—F--5F
EHeEE RRAFEXY
Board
Meetings 2021 AGM
BITESR Executive Directors

BEFLE Mr. Han Qingping 13/13 1/
ERERE Mr. Li Lei 13/13 1/l
Bl Mr. Xu Jun 13/13 1/
ToelERE Mr. Wang Guanghui 13/13 11
EZREE W52(1)) Mr. Liu Zhiwei (Note (1)) 3/3 AERN/A

BIERTESR Independent Non-Executive Directors
LRt Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence 13/13 1/
RERLE Mr. Gordon Ng 13/13 1/
FAREEEE Mr. Li Dapeng 13/13 1/

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2021F K
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Note:

() resigned as an executive director on |5 April 2021

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be
retained for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and
long-term objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business
plans and financial statements, interim and final results announcements,
material acquisitions and disposals of assets, investments, capital projects
and commitments, annual internal control assessment, funding and risk

management policies as well as connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and

internal controls systems.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties.
The terms of reference of Corporate Governance Functions was adopted by
the Board on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which

are being performed by the Board are as follows:

(i)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

There are currently three independent non-executive Directors. Each of the
independent non-executive Director was appointed or re-appointed with a

fixed term of 3 years.

During the vear ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of
three independent non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board,
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
bring independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct through
their participating in the Board Meetings and the meetings of the Board

Committees.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent upon taking
into factors for assessing independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
considers whether a candidate will bring potential complementary benefits
to the Board and contribute to the improvement of the overall competence,

experience and expertise of the Board.

The Company may consider the diversity of the composition of the Board in
various aspects, including professional experience and qualifications, gender,
age, ethnicity, and cultural and educational background, as well as any other

factors that the Board from time to time deems relevant and appropriate.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to experience and expertise, professional
experience and qualifications, gender, age, ethnicity and cultural and
educational background. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, will

review this policy as and when appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional

development program with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and

duties of a director of the Company in the Year is recorded as follows:

WEAEN
2€88
Reading

monthly updates
and reference

materials

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Qingping

Mr. Li Lei

Mr. Xu Jun

Mr. Wang Guanghui

Mr. Liu Zhiwei TEANA

NN S N

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence

Mr. Gordon Ng

Mr. Li Dapeng v

Insurance for Directors and Officers

During the Year, no claim was made against the Directors.

samNE
BREH
Attending
Seminars/
development

programmes

AN NN

TEAN/A
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises

four members, one executive Director namely Mr. Han Qingping; and three

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Gordon Ng, Mr. Lau Fai

Lawrence and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Gordon Ng.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

on 30 March 2012.The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:

i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure

for all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.
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KEEHBITMAHFNEESSH &S During the Year, two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held,
BEEgNELEZ ﬁ@%ﬂﬁ LERESIWT at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as
follows:

(HFE817) Ry
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

EMESERE Remuneration Committee Members
RERKE (2/F) Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman) 212
BETRE Mr. Han Qingping 212
FExRE Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence 212
FREBSTE Mr. Li Dapeng 212

TMEZEERNAEEZTENERHFMNS The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the Year was
§ BEEEET BmT pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and is

summarised below:

() BWHEREERSHRBEEABTM () reviewed and recommended to the Board on the existing
REHMBER REKRRER) LHE remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for all Directors’ and
SERMEBRER; senior management's remuneration;

iy B2ELEFIHKERMNAFERZM (i) recommended to the Board on the amount of remuneration to be

FTELITESREMEEAEZH paid to each executive Director and senior management member for
MEEMESGREEBRESR & the Year with reference to corporate goals and objectives; and

(i) MMEZENESTGESRZHMEZ i) recommended to the Board on remuneration proposals for the new
prop

MEEGIREHERBREZ appointed chairman of the Board.
BE_ZT_—F+__A=+—HLEE> The remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company
EABEEREREEASRFINDSES for the year ended 31 December 2021 by band is set out below:
nDZEMIMT

AH
Number of
individuals

T 2,000,000 75 Nil to HK$ 1,000,000
1,000,001 & 752 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 0
8
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, two executive Directors namely Mr. Han Qingping and Mr
Li Lei; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Lau
Fai Lawrence, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr Li Dapeng. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Han Qingping.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 30
March 2012.The Board revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the
new code provision A.5.5 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019.The Board
also adopted a nomination policy providing the nomination procedures,
process and criteria which shall be adopted by the Nomination Committee

to select and recommend candidates for directorship on 24 December 2018.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

(v)  to review the policy on Board diversity (as above) and the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board diversity
policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make
disclosure of its review results in the corporate governance report

annually; and
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(vi) where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as

an independent non-executive director at the general meeting, the

Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders

and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant

general meeting:

(a)  the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board

believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it

considers the individual to be independent;

(b) if the proposed independent non-executive director will be

holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why

the Board believes the individual would still be able to devote

sufficient time to the Board;

(c) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can

bring to the Board; and

(d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

During the Year, two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held,

at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as

follows:

Nomination Committee Members
Mr. Han Qingping (Chairman)

Mr. Li Lei

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence

Mr. Gordon Ng

Mr. Li Dapeng

Mr. Liu Zhiwei (Ex-Chairman)

(HE 847 EERY
Number of

Meetings
(Attended/Held)

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
11
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the Year was
pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and is

summarised below:

(i)  reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i)  assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors

pursuant to the Listing Rules;

(i) recommended to the Board on the change of each of the chairman
of the Board, the Nomination Committee, and Development and

Investment Committee;

(iv) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of one

independent non-executive Director; and

(v)  recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2018
AGM.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (i) as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting under the
Articles.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng,
and all of the committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, with
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management

expertise.
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The Board adopted and revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
on 30 March 2012 and on 24 March 2015 respectively. The Board further
revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the revised code provision
C.3.2 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019. The main duties of the Audit

Committee are as follows:

(i)  to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

(i) to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant

financial reporting judgments contained therein;

(iv) to review the Company's financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

(v)  to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to

have effective internal control systems;

(vi) to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management's response to these findings;

(vii) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced,
has appropriate standing within the Company and to review and

monitor its effectiveness; and

(viil) to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.
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During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held, at which

the attendance record of each committee member is set out as follows:

(HFE2817) EHRHY
Number of

Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Audit Committee Members

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Chairman) 212
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2
Mr. Li Dapeng 212

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the Year was pursuant to

the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and is summarised below:

()

(if)

(i)

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company,
before submission to the Board the Company's consolidated financial
statements in the annual report, interim report and significant financial
reporting judgments contained therein for monitoring the integrity of

the reports;

reviewed the reports from the internal audit department on
assessment of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control system of the Group covering material controls for financial,

operational, compliance and risk management; and

reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment

of external auditor.

Development and Investment Committee

As at the date of this report, the Development and Investment Committee

comprises five members, namely Mr. Han Qingping, Mr. Li Lei, Mr. Xu Jun, Mr.

Wang Guanghui and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Development and

Investment Committee is Mr. Han Qingping.
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The main duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No meeting of the Development and Investment
Committee was held during the Year. However, one meeting of the Board was
held with full Board members, for discussing and approving the business plan
and budget for the Year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor subject to
re-appointment by the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

The aggregate remuneration in respect of services provided by RSM Hong

Kong for the Year paid or payable to them is set out as follows:

TET
HK$'000

Audit services [,850

THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

There were no changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December
2021 and of ensuring that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is in accordance with the applicable standards
and requirements. The statement of the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 71 to 75 of the Annual
Report.
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ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO ADDRESS RELEVANT
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor's report contained on
pages /1 to 75 of the Annual Report, the auditor of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong (“Auditor”), had disclaimed their opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2021,
The Company has taken actions to address the relevant audit qualifications.
Actions taken by the Company to address relevant disclaimer of opinion in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2021 are set out below:

Going Concern

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity and financial position of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial

resources to continue as a going concern.

Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the liquidity position
and to improve the Group's financial position which include, but are not

limited to, the following:

(i) The Group has been actively negotiating with CALT to obtain sufficient
financial support from CALT to enable the Group to continue its operations
and for not demanding the Company to fulfill its counter guarantee and
guarantee obligations in respect of the amount due to CALT by the
Company as at 31 December 2021 of HK$1,439,008,000 arising from
certain defaulted counter-guaranteed and guaranteed loans borrowed by
a former subsidiary of the Company including interest payable from CALT
and Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co., Ltd. (*ASTF"), a fellow

subsidiary of the Company, which is repayable on demand.

On 21 May 2021, CALT issued the Company a letter undertaking not
to demand repayment from the Company for the aforesaid guarantee
obligations and to provide all necessary financial support to the Company.
Such undertakings are effective for 18 months from the issue date of the

letter.
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On 14 March 2022, CALT issued the Company another letter to grant
extension of the undertakings for further 24 months ending on 20
November 2024.

(i) The Group has been arranging for settlement of part of the balances
outstanding to its creditors. The Group has ongoing communication with its
creditors, and monitored closely any settlement requests of trade and other
payables. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is expected
that the Group could further negotiate with its creditors and agree on the

settlement arrangements where required.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due within twelve months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above plans and
measures are in progress, significant uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans and measures
as described above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the Group's ability to generate adequate
financing and operating cash flows and the successful agreement with the

Group's creditors of settlement arrangements where required.

Auditor is in view that the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on
the outcome of these plans and measures, which are subject to multiple
uncertainties, including (i) successful postponement of repayment of amount
due to CALT of approximately HK$1,439,008,000, which is repayable on
demand as at 3| December 2021; (i) necessary financial support from CALT
to enable the Group to continue its operations; and (iii) successful agreement

with the Group's creditors of settlement arrangements where required.

Since the execution of the above plans and measures is in progress and in
view of the significance of the extent of the uncertainties relating to the
ongoing availability of finance to the Group, a disclaimer of opinion was

issued in respect of the year ended 3| December 2021.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the disclaimer of opinion in conjunction
with the Auditor and Board, and concurs with the board’s position

concerning the disclaimer of opinion.

Furthermore, on the basis that the above proposed action plans have been
fully implemented in next financial year, including (i) successful postponement
of repayment of amount due to CALT of approximately HK$1,439,008,000,
which is repayable on demand as at 31 December 2021; (ii) necessary
financial support from CALT to enable the Group to continue its operations;
and (i) successful agreement with the Group’s creditors of settlement
arrangements where required. This is considered that the audit qualification

may be removed.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements
or losses can be avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in

operational systems.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has reviewed
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The internal audit team of the Company performs regular reviews
of all material controls, including risk management, financial, operational
and compliance controls of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and
effectiveness on a continuing basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and
agreed every year with the Audit Committee. A report of audit findings
is submitted to the members of the Audit Committee, discussed at the
meetings of the Audit Committee and then report to the Board. The
audit reports are then followed up by the internal audit team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are implemented for

protecting the assets of the Group and identifying business risks.
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The Board has overseen the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems covering risk management and all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance for the year under
review and in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management
and internal control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with
the code provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG
Code.

The Company has implemented its policy and procedures on inside
information, which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and

dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary shall provide assistance to the Board and ensure
efficient information circulation within the Board and, in compliance with the
policies and procedures of the Board, provide advice on governance matters
to the Board, facilitate induction of Directors and monitor their training and

continuous professional development.

The Company Secretary must take no less than |5 hours of relevant
professional training to update his skills and knowledge. Mr. Yu Ngai has
confirmed that he undertook over |5 hours of professional training during

the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

During the Year, the Board adopted a dividend policy with an aim to provide
the Shareholders with stable and sustainable returns, pursuant to which the
Board will take the following factors in proposing any dividend distribution

and determining dividend payout:

(i)  the actual and expected performance and liquidity of the Company;

(i)  the expected requirement for working capital and future investment of

the Group;
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(i) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and its

subsidiaries;

(iv)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders; and

(v)  any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The Board shall review this policy against the financial performance and

market condition from time to time and to amend it as and when necessary.

The distribution of dividend by the Company is subject to applicable laws

and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and potential investors.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to the Shareholders in
a timely manner through a number of formal channels including quarterly,

interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting
("AGM") to ensure a high level of accountability and to be kept informed of
the Group's strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, are available to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Board in respect
of each issue to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of
Directors and if an independent non-executive director serves more than 9
years. An AGM circular will be distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM (at least |0 clear business days in the case of
all other general meetings), setting out details of each proposing resolution,

poll voting procedures and other relevant information.
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As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website (http://www.energine.hk) at which the announcements, business
developments and operations, financial and corporate information of the
Group and some policies including the shareholders communications policy,
procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director,
whistleblowing policy and other information are posted under the section of

Investor Relations of the Company's website.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72, shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition (the “Written Requisition”),
specifying the proposed resolution (the “Proposed Resolution”) accompanied
by a statement in respect of the matter referred to in the Proposed
Resolution, to the Company's secretary at its Head Office, to request the
Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified in the

Written Requisition.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing by post, by email or by fax through the Company Secretary

Department whose contact details are as follows:

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

Unit 2301, 23rd Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
| Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Email: cs@energine.hk

Fax No.: +852 2531 0088
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report mainly sets out a summary of the strategies and the performance
of the Group for the period from | January 2021 to 3| December 2021 in
terms of environmental, social and governance (“ESG") aspects. The report
principally covers the business of manufacturing and distribution of wind
turbines and wind farm operations. This report was prepared in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and it has complied with the “Comply or Explain”
provisions in the ESG Guide.

Comments and Feedback

We value your comments and feedback on this report, and your comments
will help us to improve the performance in the future. Do not hesitate to
give your comments, if any, by email (cs@energine.hk) or by post (Unit 2301,
23rd Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, | Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong).

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To determine key points and content of this report as well as review its
own ESG performance and strategies, the Group has conducted a materiality
assessment during the reporting period. Based on the ESG issues set out
in the ESG Guide, we have consolidated a list of issues for materiality
assessment. By conducting interviews with the senior management, as well
as small group discussions among employees, we have successfully collected
the stakeholders' issues of concern and performance rating of the ESG
work of the Group. Material issues were identified and prioritised based
on the comments from the management and the results of the employee

engagement surveys, and 14 issues were identified as issues of concern.
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The following table summarizes the material issues most relevant to us (in

order of priority) and their respective key performance indicators. The top 5

issues in the table are classified as issues of major concern:

A

Issues

MR EHIER

Key Performance Indicators

Energy saving/low carbon

1 BIFIIR%E ERRE (BEB3) —ARINEE > AR EIEIRE3.1 2 B32
Employee training and support  Development and Training (aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1, B3.2
2 BERERZE feRRi% e (BEB) —MKE
Occupational health and safety ~ Health and safety (aspect B2) general disclosure
3BTRS {BfE (BEBI) —MIEE
Grievance mechanism for Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure
employees
4 UpRER BREA (@A) —RNE BREWERALS
Use of materials Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPl A2.5
5 EXEER/ER BREA (BEAY) —RKE BREWERAL ALY BERX

RER (BEA3) —RIE BREWERA

Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1,A2.3; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure,
KPIA3.|
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Priority
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MR AHIER

Issues Issues Key Performance Indicators
6 TEEER/APENLE  HREESE (BEsS) —REE HRENEES.
EERR Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI BS.|
Assessment on social
responsibility performance of
suppliers/contractors
7 BIEBRHEMRER  ER BER) —RKRE BRENSSEL
Related statistics and policies on  Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure, KPI BI.|
staff
8 EBYRE By (BEAI) —RIKE WREMIERAIZ A4 AL
Waste treatment Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.3, Al 4, Al6
9 BEREH By (BEAI) —REE BREMIERALINAILALS RIE
Exhaust control RRAER (BEA3) —RiKE
Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.1,Al.2, AL5; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure
10 HILERREL H TR (BEBR4) —MiKE
Regulations and standards of Labour standards (aspect B4) general disclosure
labour
11 KEREE BREA (BEAY) —RKE BREMIERALL A24 A3
Management of water resources  Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.2, A24, A3.1
12 RBHEEEY k&5 (BEBe) —MRIE > BRBENIER86.I
Prevention of corruption and Anti-corruption (aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI Bé.
bribery
13 BYER ey (BmAI) &8 (EEB|)  RREZ 2 (EEB2) %5 TR
Compliance with regulations (BmEB4) k&S (BEBS) —MIKE
Emissions (aspect Al), Employment (aspect BI), Health and safety (aspect
B2), Labour standards (aspect B4), Anti-corruption (aspect B6) general
disclosure
14 GMEMERE/ARENRE HREEESE (EEes) —RKE RMRENIEEss.

=B

Assessment on environmental
performance of suppliers/
contractors
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Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI BS.|
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group recognises a sound corporate governance framework as the
foundation for a smooth, highly efficient and highly transparent operation for
which it is essential for the steady development of the Group. As such, we
value “the proposition of employees' talents to achieve win-win situation for
all" in the management approach of the Group and apply this to our day-to-
day operation with an aim to “pursue excellence and lead the development

of new energy”.

Management of sustainable development

The framework for management of sustainable development of the Group
covers three major areas, namely quality, environment and occupational
health and safety. The management systems for each of the above areas have

been established in accordance with international and national standards.

We uphold the management system'’s principle of “planning-implementation—
checking-action” to formulate the approach for quality, environment and
occupational health and safety and set out mid-to-long term targets and
performance indices. We conduct internal inspection regularly with relevant
departments on quality, environment and occupational health and safety
pursuant to the management procedures, as well as assess the progress
made towards the targets. During the reporting period, the Group ran an
internal audit to continuously optimize our management systems, the audit
looked at the resources allocation to each department, responsibilities of
each department and their operational difficulties, quality control of products,
identification of environmental factors and their source of risks, as well as
inspection and measurement of equipment management, to ensure that the
approach and targets are applicable for Group's development and affirm
that the management systems are appropriate, sufficient and effective. In
the event of any non-compliance or potential substandard items identified,
measures for rectification, prevention or improvement will be followed
up at the management committee meeting, to determine the responsible
department and the period of time for rectification. The Group revised the
system documents, identified certain defects for improvement and alteration

therefrom as well as fully discussed the suitability of the documents.
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EReEFYEEEEERIETRER The Board reviews the strategies and policies on ESG work at annual
B -HeREREMNREBENS &E management committee meeting, supervises the implementation and
B sy T EEMIER I BEF evaluates the KPIs. In addition, the Board is responsible for preparing and
EEERTINEHREENRR - HERER publishing the ESG report of the Group.

WEe

FREen Stakeholders Engagement

FrEBRSEERBNENERR RBEUTZE The Group highly values the opinion from stakeholders, and therefore
BEBMEBFANEFNDERITBEMKE  various channels and methods tabulated below are available for effectively
BHEE BILTRRAEBRDEREMEDN and constantly communicating with stakeholders. By understanding and
BERMFRK BRAGECERRE BT responding to the opinion and requests from stakeholders in due course,
BRERHEET: the Group strives to improve its operational performance and upholds its

environmental and social responsibilities:

FinE REANX
Stakeholder Way of Communication
REE/ Investor/Most senior BEERAE General meeting
REBEERE management TEHME R BERFI Regular report, announcement, circular, annual
report
wE S Press release
REEMH Website of the Company
EENEGHR Management committee meeting
BT Staff member BITRRKE Staff meeting
BT EI Staff training
BIENEZ Employee performance assessment
WE 8 T4 Internal publication for staff
BIEBH Cooperative partner T B Regular meeting
BRI Contract and agreement
mENNE Quality analysis meeting
i e 7 5T i 5 Supplier evaluation system
ey Customer E e Product supply
EIGENE Contract and agreement
E R R Customer service
NCINE: Website of the Company
MEERE Satisfaction survey
P Community NEBEH Website of the Company
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a high-end clean energy developer in China, the Group bears the
responsibility of creating a green community while vigorously developing and
promoting energy saving and environmental protection. We strictly comply
to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People's Republic
of China, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People's Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise and
the laws and regulations on environmental protection promulgated by the
local governments, to ensure we fulfil compliance obligations in exhaust,
greenhouse gas, waste water emissions and to meet the local environmental

standards.

The impacts on the environment and natural resources are principally from
exhaust emissions, waste water, solid waste generated from our operation
activities as well as consumption of electricity, water and paper at our
premises. We have always integrated environmental protection concepts into
the Group's operation and management, strictly implemented control policies
and measures on water and energy saving and emission reduction as well as
monitored control measures and made timely adjustments thereto, so as to
scale down the impacts on the environment and nature resources. During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material breach of laws

and regulations in relation to environment and natural resources.
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Environmental Management

We distribute the management manual of quality/environment/occupational
health and safety, which was prepared in reference to the revised National
Environmental Management System Standards, to all departments and
subsidiaries. The three key documents of the management system, namely
the “Control Procedure for Environmental Emergency Preparedness and
Response”, the "Control Procedure for Performance Supervision and
Measurement of Environment, Occupational Health and Safety” and the
“Control Procedure for Document Management”, set out the details of our
solid waste management, emergency handling, supervision and measurement
of our performance in environment as well as our management in record

keeping.

We implemented “the Control Procedure for Environmental Management”,
setting out the management responsibility and procedure on procurement,
sales activities, waste treatment, infrastructure and work environment at
offices, wind farms and subsidiary level. The Comprehensive Management
Department of the Group organized two environmental protection
inspections throughout the year, to ensure the fulfilment of the Company's
environmental approach and targets. The subsidiaries formulate
environmental targets based on their own operational conditions, and their

production process also need to strictly follow our procedures.

Emergency measures for environmental accidents

In case of any accident or emergency from operating activities, production,
and service, the Group would proceed with effective control and disposal,
so as to lower the degree of personal injury, financial loss, and environmental
influence. We developed corresponding emergency plans and organized
training and drills in respect of possible environmental accidents. In case of
any unanticipated accident, we were required to carry out emergency rescue

in a rapid, effective, orderly, and efficient manner.
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Environmental protection facilities

We place emphasis on the ecological environment in factories and their
surrounding area. The headquarters of the Group invested more than
RMB300,000 to replace the flooring, which completely solved the problem of
dirt and grime hidden in the carpet fitted in the office premises, and placed
green plants to purify the air in the office premises as well. We endeavour
to create a comfortable work environment for our staff by greening and
beautifying the area, and meet the local government requirements on

ecological greening.

CONFORMING DISCHARGE

The Group was committed to reducing environmental pollution in the
process of discharge, in consequence, the waste materials, exhaust gas,
wastewater and noise arising from production were controlled effectively.
During the reporting period, there was no event in breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

We have complied with the national Measures on Supervision of Exhaust
Pollution from Automobiles and the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the local governments. We perform inspection on vehicles
on a regular basis in accordance with our Vehicle Management Mechanism to

ensure conforming discharge.
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BREHN AEBSRESFRYEREBE RN During the reporting period, the emission of the Group's vehicle exhaust was

aF as follows:

He K HBE

Emissions* Quantity

E1E#SOx T Kilogram 0.02

A EYINOxX T Kilogram |.46

R L FPM Fr Kilogram 0.11
aERBHER Greenhouse gas emissions

EEELNREIERBETBE AN The carbon of the Group is principally the direct emission from vehicles'

EEFRABAENNEZEEN 2 "—  engine and the indirect emission of electricity purchased. In 2021, the
F EEAREREHNEASE _SERE greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group amounted to 55 tonnes
E(tCOse)° of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOqe).

mERRRHN B iR Hith &

Greenhouse gas emissions Source of emissions i Volume of emissions

BEREFR @EE—) (tCOe) SO R R R I #E BB A WAt EE

B AR RS
Direct carbon emissions (Scope 1)  Consumption of diesel and gas as well as ~ tCOae 8
(tCOze) gasoline and diesel used for vehicles
HEHER (8E ) (tCO) EENE MR EE
Indirect carbon emissions Electricity purchased tCOse 47

(Scope I (tCOqe)
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Waste Management

To comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
implemented the internal system of “Solid Waste Management Measures” to
manage and supervise the process of solid waste disposal. The solid waste
produced from the production and operation of the Group is divided into
recyclable and non-recyclable as well as hazardous and non-hazardous. The
Group recycles the non-hazardous waste, such as waste paper, waste metal,
waste glass, waste plastic, waste equipment and parts and components, and
individual departments move the recyclable wastes to a designated separate
collection station for combined disposal by the units with corresponding
recycling qualifications. For the non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes, they are
mainly solid waste from cutting and trimming in the production process of
blade and household. In 2021, the Group did not have any blade production

task, as a result, there was no non-recyclable waste.

The hazardous wastes are mainly ink cartridge, engine oil, dry cell battery,
storage battery, waste cloth (which contains engine oil, isoamyl acetate
and ink), waste mercury-containing lamps, waste chemical containers and
laboratory wastes (such as cloth, gloves and filter materials). For disposal of
hazardous wastes, the headquarters of the Group and its subsidiaries place
garbage bins at various designated locations in plant or office or storage
areas to ensure the prevention of spread, loss and leakage of hazards. A
qualified company will be engaged for collective disposal upon accumulation
of certain amount of hazardous wastes. For recyclable hazardous wastes, such
as ink cartridge and lubricants, the Group has formed an agreement with
suppliers for recycling waste ink cartridge and lubricants. To prevent, control,
and dispose of secondary pollution generated from waste, the subsidiaries,
according to specific conditions, formulated the corresponding disposal plan

and supervised the process of packaging, loading and transfer of waste.
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Solid waste category

In 2021, the Group's disposal of principal wastes was as follows:

Volume

BEEEEYEE Disposal of hazardous waste I tonne -
B|EREEY)EE Disposal of non-hazardous waste I tonne |4
EEREEYEIU Recycling of non-hazardous waste g tonne -

Bk ER

BFIBBE KB R R E 2R B A B A5~ MY
BREMIHREK EBABHME RS
KEMERRSKER HERETRER
B - EEEENHAKEERE RERE
BT AR EI(SKGEEHIIRE)
— R WHFRETBEES B

A ME SIS RKEREE B BRI
g EFRBBEERNERSICEIAZRRNB
KRG LUPEAR BB R BB 2 o

ERRE

REAEERAKRBERTIRNERE
BB Ko R EEEMARRR - 3
PREBREFRERBERO BHERE
TEMERERC
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Woastewater Management

Our wastewater discharge source is mainly office sewage in the headquarters
of our Company and its subsidiaries. The Group's headquarters discharged
its wastewater to the sewage pipeline of the park, where wastewater was
disposed and discharged. As the effluent after treatment has been gone
through nitrogen removal, dephosphorization and organic matter removal, it
meets the requirements specified in the Integrated Wastewater Discharge

Standard and can be discharged to municipal sewage discharge network.

In the meanwhile, our factory endeavours to seek opportunity for recycling
and reusing water resources. In summer, household sewage after treatment in
plant area flows into the clean water reservoir inside factory for irrigation of

greening plants.

Effective Use of Resources

The resources involved in the Company's operations and wind turbine
services include gasoline, electricity, and water. To reduce operational costs
and to demonstrate our determination in environmental protection, we are

committed to effectively use resources in our operation.
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L HEEE
Indicator Corresponding Measures
EIESEEYIS ANBRKETRE3%  REFERKGNERREEIR FTUFEBKES:
Water conservation Reduction of water Wi ZEERTIAGRKE
consumption per capita Calculating the annual volume of water consumption
by 3% by referencing annual water conservation indicator and

production process, and minimising water consumption per

capita to the level of the annual volume of water consumption
- HEAGSEBHOAKNER

Assigning a person in charge of monitoring the implementation

of water conservation

AL BE TR E FE ANBIRBEETE3% - LERBREEBIIRBAER ARKE
Reduction of energy Reduction of electricity Turning off all production equipment and tools when not in
consumption consumption per capita use
by 3% « THRBEERAZENREREER
Switching off equipment and tools at office before leaving
R EREFE AR E T 5% - REFEARDOER FTUFERMEE UKREES
Reduction of resource  Reduction of paper BEARE&EBINAMAE
consumption consumption per capita Calculating annual paper consumption by referencing annual
by 5% paper conservation indicator; and reasonably allocating paper

consumption quota to each employee

« EIIBRENEARAGRE T RESTHORR
Affixing “Paper Conservation” sticker on printers and
photocopiers as a reminder

- FREMNRABMLOALEER MAEBHXE—2
AR ARETED
Using both sides of A4 paper for non-confidential information,
and new A4 paper is only used for printing finalized draft of
document

« [EREBEERRXHE
Recycling waste document

« BIEXHERGIE B XHHEDN L #
Formulating a document circulation system for reducing the
number of photocopy of documents

© REAS(EWHESEFE) N

Implementing the internal “Vehicle Management System”
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Energy Consumption

Other measures for effective use of resources include promotion week for
energy conservation, low carbon day campaign, recycling grease can, affixing
“saving electricity and water” sticker at canteens, toilets and water rooms and

using treated effluent for irrigation.

In terms of energy consumption, the Group mainly consumes electric energy,
while fuel is mostly consumed by vehicles. In 2021, the Group consumed
electricity of 42,221 kilowatt-hours and gasoline of 1,562 liters, contributing
to the total energy consumption equivalent to 57,362 kilowatt-hours. As for
water use, the Group only utilizes tap water. In 2021, the water consumption
was I,116 cubic meters. In terms of total gross floor area, the intensity of
total energy consumption and water consumption were 1.26 (kilowatt-hours/
square meter) and 0.02 (cubic meter/square meter). In terms of production,
the Group's products need only few packaging materials such as wooden

case and paper case to protect the products from damage in transit.

B Electricity
Y2 M Gasoline
4B 3E BB FE Total energy consumption

KERHE

Water Resource Consumption

E kilowatt-hours 42221
AN Liters 1,562
E kilowatt-hours 57,362

7K Water TFHkK Cubic meters L1116
TEaRMERR

Consumption of Principal Packaging Materials

N8 Wooden case L7 Tonne -
4878 Paper case U Tonne 0.5
48141 58 B /B $E Total consumption of materials 17 Tonne 0.5
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Wise use of electricity: Turn off lighting and air conditioning switches
in the workplace, minimise standby power consumption of computers and
make sure all electrical appliances are switched off after work by assigning

responsible persons to conduct daily inspection.

Reducing the use of official vehicles and encouraging low-carbon
lifestyle: The official vehicles are collectively scheduled and managed for
effective use of the transport capacity. Vehicles are deployed according to
demands. It is encouraged to share official vehicles for going out for business
purposes. The Company implements strict approval for the use of official
vehicles to promote conversation measures on official vehicles. Vehicle
inspection is carried out during routine vehicle maintenance for minimising
energy loss by manmade causes. Meanwhile, employees are encouraged to go

out to work by taking common social security cars on the market.

Use of raw materials

The raw materials required for our production mainly are energy, water
resources and packaging materials. To avoid excessive use of raw materials,
facilitate the formulation of procurement plan by the Group as well as the
cost control of products, we have implemented management measures on
procurement and use of raw materials in our subsidiaries. Production teams
are distributed a defined amount of raw materials. In the event of insufficient
raw materials for production, head of technology department is required to
fill in a form stating the reasons for insufficiency and the additional amount
required after verification. For those cases of excessive use of raw materials
caused by man-made factors, the persons involved may receive punishment

in the light of actual conditions.

In the wind turbine operation and maintenance services, employees are
encouraged to use their wisdom to implement inventions, creations, and
technical reforms, and make full use of the spare parts replaced in the
operation and maintenance for reuse, e.g. reuse of the replaced brake plier of
wind turbine on wind turbines after repair, which saves the cost of material

procurement and enables the reuse of waste, achieving good results.
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BT esE TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

REEBNTREMER EMT T ER/A  The Group conducts business in a manner of “engaging in new energy
BIRCE 2ERBBEIRKFHLER cause, contributing to the society, and benefiting the mankind”, building up
FoRMBHENUART EEER UEA a good social corporate image over the past years. Our "people-oriented”
UTF—%AEHERERLGSE S IEAB management together with the following measures have enhanced the
IwEE MeETHER- integrated strength of the Group while bringing satisfaction and nurturing

sense of belonging within our employees.

EER%IEN Employment and Labour Standards

EREBEEENANEREEHENR The Group continuously attracts, searches, and nurtures talents in addition to
B BMFERMN BERBBEAL B optimisation of its management system of human resources, so as to create a
EE—EME ST ARENIFRIE 2 harmonious, diversified and friendly work environment for our people.

BT#EMER-
—FETAERFAUT : Our employee breakdown in 2021 is as follows:
#|h R BTA¥
By Category Description Number of Employee
M7l Gender Z M Male 29
M Female 9
EE4EEY Form of employment 28 Full-time 38
Fe B Part-time _
TR Age 3558 K LUR 35 or below 15
365% E455% 36 to 45 6
4658 55 LT 46 to 55 below 5
565% K2 LA £ 56 or above 2
& Region &7 Hong Kong 10
F1 B P33t Mainland China 28
BETAH:38

Total number of
employee: 38
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The Group has strictly regulated the recruitment process and adopted a
fair and transparent recruitment policy to ensure fair treatment and respect
to all employees. During the reporting period, there was no litigations
in relation to discrimination in employment. The “Detailed Rules for
Senior Management” was issued by the Company to explicitly guarantee
meritocracy in recruitment. In the same year, the issuance of “Detailed Rules
for Management of Personnel for Reemployment” has secured the legal
benefits of those employees who have not been offered any positions or
has not agreed with any re-designation arrangement due to restructuring,
adjustment and elimination of certain types of positions. The Group strictly
complied with relevant requirements of the Employment Ordinance in Hong
Kong, the Labor Contract Law of the PRC and other laws and regulations
relating to work environment, forced and child labour. We provide our
employees with various labour protection, safe and hygienic workplace and
reasonable remuneration and benefits, including employees’ insurance and

annual health check.

Health and safety

The Group endeavours to provide its staff members a safe working
environment. We strictly follow the standards stipulated in “Production
Safety Law of the People's Republic of China" and the “Occupational
Health and Safety Management System", and implement the “Administrative
Regulations on the Work Safety”. At the beginning of 2021, a safety work
meeting was held, at which the chairman of the Group issued the Safety
Target Management Responsibility Order to all departments and subsidiaries;
the safety management committee convened 2 meetings to listen to the
report on the safety and epidemic prevention and control work of the
Company, to study and coordinate the problems encountered, and also to
make arrangements for new problems and new situations encountered in
the Company's operations. The Group insisted on holding regular quarterly
safety meetings, to summarize the quarterly work and make targeted work
deployments based on the characteristics of the safety situation in each

quarter.
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Following the principle of “safety management is essential for business
management”, the Group integrated safety work into production task
organization planning, carried out safety risk identification for technical
transformation tasks, and formulated special plans for high-risk projects
such as replacement of wind turbine generators and erection of new
wind turbines, to clarify the safety responsibilities of personnel at all levels.
Before the launch of the special plans, inspection was conducted according
to standards and tables, and review was performed for the preparation of
safety measures at the technical transformation site; during the process, the
progress of on-site work was summarized daily, in order to predict the safety
risks of the next day and coordinate various issues in a timely manner. Upon
completion of the project, efforts were exerted for summarization in a timely
manner and continuous improvement and optimization of the whole process

management content of the technical transformation project.

Through continuous safety training at all levels, we strive to make safety
requirements a conscious action of employees, build a safety culture and
improve the overall safety level of the Group. We have a full-time team
responsible for overall planning and monitoring. During the campaign, we
conducted high-altitude rescue training for wind farms, training on safety
inspections, review of employees' wearing of protective equipment, use of
tools and machinery, etc,, to ensure that employees followed safety rules and
procedures. If non-compliance is found, it will be immediately pointed out

and corrective measures will be taken to prevent accidents.
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In the face of the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 and the local outbreak of
the epidemic in the country, the Group carried out a number of information
investigations and status investigations for all employees; and emergency
procurement of masks, disinfectants, thermometers and other epidemic
prevention and control materials to support the production line; the office
staff was minimized by arranging reasonable shifts on duty; the Group
used WeChat, email, and Dingding to issue multiple urgent notifications to
publicize the knowledge of epidemic prevention and control, and organized
employees to accept nucleic acid testing. Before resumption of work and
production, targeted guidance was provided on the epidemic prevention
and control and safety preparedness of subsidiaries. In accordance with the
requirements of the Company and local governments, all subsidiaries actively
carried out epidemic prevention and control and publicity on knowledge of
epidemic, which strongly supported the work goal of “0" infection.

In addition, the Group cares about the physical and mental health of its
staff members and encourages them to achieve a better work-life balance.
The Group provides its staff members with health check and mental health
assessment, and organises various activities to raise concerns about stress
management. Through these acts, we hope to secure physical and mental
health of its staff and effectively reduce sickness and absence rate of the
Group.

Development and Training

The Group endeavours to provide a career development platform to its staff
members, regularly organizing internal trainings on different topics, including
safety, departmental and standard system, expertise and skills enhancement.
We also provide external trainings to our staff for personal development.

SH8T

A L RilEE 5 ALt Fi91E IR
Percentage of Average Number

Staff Members of Training Hour

Category Description Trained Per Staff Member
M BlGender M Male 100% 85
2 %Female 100% 75

E I A\ EManagement 100% 77

% BE A BSkillful personnel 100% 83
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Supply chain management

Throughout the entire procurement process from design, R&D, production
and processing, installation and commissioning to maintenance and repair,
the "Measures for the Management of the Purchase of Supplies” are strictly
implemented to reduce purchase cost and carried out the standardisation
of the purchase model. We have followed the principles of “transparent, fair
and impartial” and “collective procurement, making comparison for the best”
throughout the procurement process. Our supplier selection criteria include

qualifications, price level, quality, delivery performance and after-sales services.

In respect of management of suppliers, the Group has implemented a
comprehensive “Measures for the Management of Suppliers Development”
and “Annual Appraisal Method of Suppliers” to include the requirements
for environmental protection, occupational safety and social responsibilities
in selecting suppliers. The suppliers involving key issues of environment or
occupational safety will be given a written notice in accordance with the
"“Operation Control Procedures for Environmental Management” and the
“Operation Control Procedures for Occupational Health and Safety”. Any
failures to improve its behavior on environment or reduce environmental
risks, the Group will require the supplier(s) to rectify or cease cooperation
with them. In assessing our suppliers, our team will conduct a detailed on-
site inspection on production, equipment and facilities and production
sites and issue an assessment report on suppliers within one week after
the completion of the assessment. For the same component or the same
service, we have more than three qualified suppliers, thus effectively reducing
procurement costs and avoiding the risks arising from using exclusive supplier.
The annual appraisal is conducted in strict accordance with “Annual Appraisal

Method of Suppliers” on an ongoing basis.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

We have zero tolerance on bribery and corruption and place high emphasis
on ethical conduct. We endeavour to build a corruption-free working
environment by strictly following the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. Each
employee is required to uphold his/her own responsibility and act in an
honest and pragmatic manner, and is prohibited to get involved into any
criminal activities, such as bribery and corruption, blackmail, fraud and money

laundering.

The Group launched regular self-inspections on anti-corruption. In particular,
we inspected office space, official vehicles, business reception, funds
management, employee selection and appointment, allowances and subsidies,
etc. and no corruption, bribe-taking, and other acts in breach of the rules and

laws were identified.

In the event of any bribery, corruption, blackmail and money laundering
detected, we will take necessary legal actions to protect the interest of
the Group. Meanwhile, the Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to
which employees can report, in confidence, any suspected misconduct in the
Company to the Audit Committee. The committee will then establish a case
for internal inspection and seeking legal advice. In 2020, no corruption lawsuit

occurred in the Company.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We have actively organized and participated into community service activities
for fulfilling our corporate social responsibilities and developing a harmonious

society.
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AIRIR

A. Environmental

—RHBERARBBER

General Disclosures and KPls

A

Description

EmAI Hew
Aspect Al Emissions
—MRKE BRBERARERBHN  BkRIMBI S AERESEEYNELSH ! P51-56
General Disclosure Information on:

@ BR;K

b) BITHETABEATENHEREZRKRRONER-

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BB NIEIRALLI BE R R B R HE R P54
KPIATI The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
RRENIERAL2 BRERBAIINE CUESHE) k WER) BE MMUSESE( BERME) P54
KPI'Al.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).
RRENIERAIS FFEEREREEYEE QUEHE) k WER) BE MMUSEEE(  BERME P56
KPIAL3 8) e

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).
FARENIERAI4 FELEZEERYRE CUEHE) k WER) BE WNUSESS M BERKM P56
KPI Al 4 g) e

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).
RREMIEIRALS WA B RENERRPTEMR P53
KPI'AT.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
MRENIEEAlLC HRREEESRESHENNS A REELENERRAERE P55

KPI'Al.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives
and results achieved.
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Aspect A2
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General Disclosure
RASRAEWIRIEAL|
KPI A2.1

FR SR RIS 1RA22
KPI A2.2
FR SR AR IS 1RAL3
KPI A23
PR SR AE NS 1RAL 4
KPI A24

FR SR AR IS 1RALS
KPI A2.5

BEA3
Aspect A3

—RRIKE

General Disclosure

R SRR IS RAS.
KPI A3
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—RHERMRBBER

General Disclosures and KPIs

L

Description

HEER

Use of Resources

BERERAER (BIEER  KREMEME) HEE-

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
RENSSNERE/AERERME RIh) EEE UTETREFE RS
EMNSESE M SEKME)

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh
in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BEKBREE WNEEEE( BERMHE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
Wil sE RER N st B RPTGAR

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

fREGE A AR R BE AR URBABKE @t B ERE
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HMmPTABEMBNEAE (UMtE) k WBER) SLEEEIES-

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

RIARXAAR

The Environment and Natural Resources
BEETABRRERRABEREMEAT ENER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

BRI HRBERAARE RN EAF ERERNEEBRAZ ENTH-
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
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B. Social
EBEBI
Aspect Bl
—MiRE

General Disclosure

PR I5 1R8I
KPIBI.I

[EmEB2
Aspect B2
—MRIKE

General Disclosure

—RHERMRBBIER

General Disclosures and KPIs

BREA

Description

1 (&

Employment

BRHM KRR BERE TERE-RE FERE S RERUKRE  P60-6

(UESTENSE RN

Information on:

@ BR, K

b) BIHETABEARENERZRRRANER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

R ERER FRAN KM EE DHNESEH - P60
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

ERARE

Health and Safety

BRRHZE2IFRERFREEERRBELLEN ! P61-63
Information on:

@ BR;K

b)) BITHETABEARENEREIERRGANER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.
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General Disclosure

R SR AR AN 151283, |
KPI B3.|
BRI 1EB3.2
KPI B3.2

BmB4

Aspect B4

— MR =

General Disclosure

BmBs

Aspect B5

— BB
General Disclosure
R SR 4B A5 1EBS. |
KPI BS.1
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—RHERMRBBER

General Disclosures and KPIs

L

Description

BRREN

Development and Training
BRRMEERET T FEE NN # R AERIBR - #llIEHIEE -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

B REEENDNZIEER DL

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.

witH REEERNE D BRHEETHRINN TR

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
SIER

Labour Standards

BRALEE TSR T :

Information on:

() K K

b) BIFHETABERFENHEBEIRKRRONER -

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

s EE

Supply Chain Management

BEEMEENRERT G ERHR-

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
HABRERHEENES AERTAREFNHRERHE UkBEBEANHR
TREER %

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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—REERMRENIER
General Disclosures and KPls

REA

Description
[EmEB6 R&E
Aspect Bé Anti-corruption
— MR E BRARG L BRRE ~ B~ IRFF RO AR ERA P65
General Disclosure Information on:

@ HBE;&

b) BITHETABEAZENEREZRRRONER-
(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

FRRNIEEB6.| W E R RRER URERRNTRER S A P65
KPI Bé6. | Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

[EmB7 HERS

Aspect B7 Community Investment

—RIKE BRUME 2 AKEREEMEMETENRAEAET LT EEHEN TR P65
General Disclosure Ho

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.
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Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F +8522598 7230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76
to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

A



72

BIAIZBMEREE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FRERERZEH

MizEMBREWME2FL SEEHE
B —F+-_HA=+—HLEEEE4L
REFERS £ 2 FEEAT4,140,000
BT RBEE_E-_—#+-8F=+-—
H» BEERESRBHERIEKAGEE
D AI#32,061,167,00078 75 K 4 1,763,893,000
BT -RTEZ—F+ZB=+—H’ &
EEEYPEES A RMAER (TR
AibTl) IEAX1,439,008,0007 75 * % K
BERERKEE , MR-+
B=+—HERERBEEBYEAN
31,257,000 75 c ZF B MR BF T A AL
# BEERECEENELEAREN
BEARRHEM-

SNEEEBMLIENE RIEH NN
BEEENREMEREBRR (R
MBHRERNE) -G ERRDER
REEMER HENUBRR ZE T
|RERNER IRLEARERRY
2 (VRN EEERM NG RIE
491,439,008,0008 70 ZRBER 2 —F
TZA=+—HERBERKERE ; (i) A Fibx
TENMHZFHE SEEEHAFELE,
R ERE BEEERARGEZH
R TD3E R ik ©

>

W 0> O mg

Bl

i

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss from continuing operations of approximately
HK$74,140,000 during the year ended 3| December 2021 and, as of 31
December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$2,061,167,000 and approximately HK$1,763,893,000,
respectively. The Group's amount due to China Academy of Launch Vehicle
Technology (“CALT") amounted to approximately HK$439,008,000 as
at 31 December 2021, which is repayable on demand; while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$31,257,000 only as at 3|
December 202 1. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern.

The directors of the Company have undertaken a number of plans and
measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, as set out
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of these plans and measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) successful postponement of
repayment of amount due to CALT of approximately HK$1,439,008,000,
which is repayable on demand as at 31 December 2021; (ii) sufficiency of
financial support from CALT to enable the Group to continue its operations;
and (i) successful agreement with the Group's creditors of settlement

arrangements where required.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and measures,
or should CALT no longer have the financial ability to provide finance to the
Group, it may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business. Adjustments would have to be made to
reclassify the Group's non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying amounts
of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any
provision for any contractual commitments that have become onerous as at
the end of the reporting period. The effects of these adjustments have not

been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Since the execution of the above plans and measures is in progress and in
view of the significance of the extent of the uncertainties relating to the
ongoing availability of finance to the Group, we disclaim our opinion in

respect of the year ended 3| December 2021.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FORTHE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities

for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these

consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BECEC —F D A SHIEEE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

76

s 2021 2020
NOTE FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$ 000

FRGEER Continuing operations
W Revenue 8 9,100 26,151
Uy %5 B A Cost of revenue (1,080) (21,706)
EH) Gross profit 8,020 4,445
HKA Other income 9 620 2,420
Hth s K518 Other gains and losses 10 320,615 (2,259)
MHERENERE Financial guarantee contract liabilities (399,032) -
THEEKRSQEEME Imparment losses, net of reversal,

548 (0BR[] on financial assets and contract assets Il - (333,022)
THEHR Administrative expenses (11,402) (25,268)
B Finance costs I3 (116) (420)
LS NABEE Share of results of associates 10,268 7,299
IRiRAIESHA Loss before tax (71,027) (346,805)
FREMm Income tax expense 14 (3,113) (1,616)
TEEREEEREE Loss for the year from

EBmZEBH continuing operations 15 (74,140) (348421)
BRILEEER Discontinued operations
KEERBBRIELE Loss for the year from discontinued operations

EBZEE 19 - (875,044)
FEEGR Loss for the year (74,140) (1,223,465)
Hith2mEMAX : Other comprehensive expense:

RrEENFEE Item that will not be reclassified
BmzEE to profit or loss
TE2EREELEZ Exchange differences arising on translation
BERELR to presentation currency (54,404) (104,475)
FEEHM2EME Other comprehensive expense
for the year (54,404) (104,475)
TEEREMARAEHE Total comprehensive expense
for the year (128,544) (1,327,940)
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saiimkEMEEETHR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE S SSEH=F+—HIFE

For the year ended 3| December 202/

& 2021 2020
NOTE FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$000
TATIEE AEM. Loss for the year attributable to
FEEHHR owners of the Company
REFBRERET From continuing operations (76,499) (186,315)
REBRIEKEXR From discontinued operations - (875,044)
(76,499) (1,061,359)
JEREU 1 e 2 FE (L Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
FEERN (R non-controlling interests
REFBREES From continuing operations 2,359 (162,106)
FEEHR Loss for the year (74,140) (1,223,465)
UTALTEESEERE Total comprehensive expense
4% . for the year attributable to:
EREEBA Owners of the Company (125,918) (1,159,334)
FEPERIM R Non-controlling interests (2,626) (168,606)
(128,544) (1,327,940)
SRER Loss per share 20
REFELER From continuing and discontinued
RIS operations
EHA (B Basic (HK cents) (1.75) (24.29)
58 (B Diluted (HK cents) FiERA NA TEA N/A
REFELEER From continuing operations
HA (B Basic (HK cents) (1.75) (4.26)
58 (B Diluted (HK cents) FiERA NA REA N/A
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FeMBINRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

T AR | =

At 3/ December 202/

Y 5F 2021 2020
NOTE FET T#71
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HE ASSETS
JEREEE Non-current assets
Y EN Y Property, plant and equipment 21 65,459 362
REMZE Investment properties 22 - -
CREEE Right-of-use assets 23 27,874 —
kS Goodwil 24 - _
B EE Intangible assets 25 - -
REERF 2 #m Interests in associates 27 212,094 224,655
JEREE EE(E Total non-current assets 305,427 225017
RENEE Current assets
=& Inventories 28 2,533 -
B 5 R EME W Trade and other receivables,

BERENR deposits and prepayments 29 48,793 5,184
BHNEE Contract assets 30 - -
FE W B A B 7R Amounts due from associates 31 4,485 4,450
FE UK BP A 18 Current tax receivable 574 =
RITERKRE Bank balances and cash 32 31,257 19,956

RBEEAE Total current assets 87,642 29,590
aff LIABILITIES
piik DR Current liabilities
B 5 REAMBEMA R Trade and other payables 33 706,076 967,990
e —RE Amount due to an intermediate

Al S UNEIE holding company 34 1,439,008 508,564
RIEE Warranty provision 35 - -
PHEIERENEE Financial guarantee contract liabilities 36 - 496,479
FE T BN HAFR IE Current tax payable 2,228 -
HESRE Lease liabilities 37 1,497 1,430

mEEEAE Total current liabilities 2,148,809 1,974,463
mEaEPE Net current liabilities (2,061,167) (1944,873)
BELERRHAR Total assets less current liabilities (1,755,740) (1,719,856)
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HEMBINAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S s WSt
At 31 December 2021

B 5T 2021 2020
NOTE FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JERBIAR Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 37 256 1,753
FIEMIESE Deferred tax liabilities 38 7,897 399
ERBBBEE Total non-current liabilities 8,153 2,152
afRBE NET LIABILITIES (1,763,893) (1,722,008)
L EQUITY
BEXRiHE Capital and reserves
fg 7 Share capital 39 436,900 436,900
ki Reserves (2,114,130) (1,988,212)
EREHER ARG EA Deficiency attributable to owners
of the Company (1,677,230) (1,551,312)
FEEEHI M R Non-controlling interests (86,663) (170,696)
Bakas TOTAL DEFICIENCY (1,763,893) (1,722,008)

REFFR _T-__F=-A=+—Hitt Approved by the Board of Directors on 3| March 2022 and are signed on its
B THRUTEEAREE ! behalf by:

RET i
Han Qingping Xu Jun
HITEE HITEFE
Executive Director Executive Director
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GaEnEnR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BECEC —F D A SHIEEE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

FRRHAAER
Attributable to owners of the Company
NEEMRR FErERItE R
s ROEE  BRRE  Poperyy ERRE  HfMEE  RiEH Non-
Share Share Special  revaluation  Exchange Other Accumulated it controlling kel
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses Sub-total interests Total
&7 2 Tiér TEr &7 2 Tér TET i T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(Hizt41 (Hizt4l Wizt
(H239) ®)) (i) i)
(note 4/ (note 41 (note 4/
(note 39) ®)0) ©)) ®)i)
RZEZFE—F—H At janvary 2020 436900 2732397 86,971 1399 150,041 107,825 (3907511) (391,978) 41,191 (350,787)
TEEHR Loss for the year - - - - - - (10813%9) (1061359 (162108)  (1.223465)
THEFEMEEZ  Exchange differences arising on
EREE translation to presentation
currency - - - - (97.975) - - (97975) (6500) (104475)
REEZEBEZEE  Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (97975) - (1.061359)  (1,159334) (168,606)  (1,327,940)
A—EREARZ Dividend to non-controling
SRR interest of a subsidiary
ZBE - - - - - - - - (950) (950)
o Transfer - - - - - 86 (816) - - -
WRATBAGAAR  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - = - (1399) (45004) (108639) 155,041 - (42331) (42331)
RIFZEE At 31 December 2020 and
+ZR=+-Bk | January 2021
“2_-%#-A-H 436,900 2,732,397 86,971 - 7,062 3 (4814645 (1,551,312)  (170,696)  (1,722,008)
KEE (BE) /BF  (Loss)lprofit for the year - - - - - - (76,499) (76,499) 2,359 (74,140)
hE2INEREEL Exchange differences
EQER arising on translation to
presentation currency - - - - (49,419) - - (49,419) (4,985) (54,404)
FEEREBEZEE  Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (49,419) - (76,499) (125,918) (2,626) (128,544)
ERE5 (HaE420)  Business combination (note 42(c)) - - - - - - - - 82,3718 82,378
—EHEAFZ Capital contribution from
FEHKEDIE non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 4,281 4,281
RIFZ-E At 31 December 20
+ZR=1-H 436,900 2,732,397 86,971 - (42,357) 3 (4,891,144) (1,677,230 (86,663)  (1,763,893)
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maBiERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

M 2021 2020
NOTE FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HEEDFRERERE CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FRiRAIEE Loss before tax
TELEEH Continuing operations (71,027) (346,805)
BRIEREEE Discontinued operations - (875,310)
(71,027) (1222,115)
U RBIEFLAE Adjustments for:
H B Interest income (14) (5,390)
H SR Interest expense 116 89,543
BREBA Dividend income - (293)
i A= UNCIE $ Share of results of associates (10,268) (289)
BhAEREER Share of results of joint ventures - (63511)
ME-RERRE2ITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 296 21,669
FREEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets - 6,149
B2 BB Government grants recognised - (1272)
=BG Gain on bargain purchase 42(c) (20,494) =
MEABEBUHASARZ Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
s 2(b) (295,308) (237.728)
HRALE—HBEREZ Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
e 42(c) (8,953) =
HE MBENE- BER Gain on disposal/write-off of property,
Rz Wi plant and equipment - (3,056)
WE B R R EREDZ Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BRI property, plant and equipment - 11,812
MEAESERSZ Impairment loss recognised in respect
BRI of right-of-use assets - 2,844
HER SO REREE QB Impairment losses, net of reversal, recognised
REFUBRELES in respect of trade balances arising from

ERERZRERE contracts with customers and amounts

(0 BR#E[E) due from associates in trade nature - 1,124,051
MEMRK - BRBE AT Impairment loss recognised in respect of other

REEGCERFEZHER receivables, amounts due from associates and

R 2R EEE joint ventures which are non-trade nature - 137,908
REMEATEEHZEE Loss from changes in fair value

of investment properties - 1,238

— BRI E AR RE 2 BB Loss on claim from a former subsidiary 4,149 -

WREFES Write-down of inventories - 42777

MiEEELS Write-off of purchase deposits - 15,463

WHERESHNEE Financial guarantee contract liabilities 399,032 -
SESTEYNLEHE Operating loss before working capital changes (2,471) (80,200)
FEEm Increase in inventories - (11337)
B REMBWFBEUR  Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables,

BAZURD / (12) deposits and prepayments 584 (543,770)
BNEERD Decrease in contract assets - 3,503
P LSt Bt A =) R Increase in amounts due from associates - (62,787)
B2 REMEMR (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

CRi2b) /3Em (1,421) 624,653
P {11 B /A B PR3 N Increase in amounts due to associates - 3,113
BREaEhEILM Increase in amounts due to joint ventures - 47
RIERER D Decrease in warranty provision - (27,034)
BREE 2R/ Cash used in operations (3,308) (93812)
BAMER Income taxes paid - (739)
REEHMAZRE 38 Net cash used in operating activities (3,308) (94,551)
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HaBERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BECEC —F D A SHIEEE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

i3 2021 2020
NOTE FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
RAZHFAFRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
KEREEREZRE Receipt of dividend income from a joint venture - 37,592
WEBE AR Z R E Receipt of dividend income from associates 3,721 1,974
BB A FESARMER Receipt of dividend from financial assets at
KmzeMEEZRS FVTOCI - 293
BIFIE Interest received 14 371
HEME -BERRE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
S equipment - 1,587
BN EEM Repayment from associates - 4569
BENE -BEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment @3) (4,698)
RELEEM Repayment from joint ventures - 51,933
B A B HURAR S AR Deconsolidation of subsidiaries 4(b) (99) (61,659)
B Business combination 42(c) 12,189 =
REEHELEZHEFE Net cash generated from investing activities 15,822 31,962
MAZDHFAERERE CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
WEAEE New borrowings raised - 232,486
BERE Repayment of borrowings - (162,882)
BAFE Interest paid (116) (50,521
BEHESR Repayment of lease liabilities (1,430) (5,862)
BREES (FTA) /P8 ZEE  Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities
e (1,546) 13221
BERFEEREN NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
@i,/ () B8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,968 (49,368)
SNEEXE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 333 (8,903)
BK—B—HNRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REEEN AT | JANUARY 19,956 78227
B+=B=+—HMHEER  CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEEEM AT 31 DECEMBER 31,257 19,956
RERREEENIHA ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RiTEEIEE Bank balances and cash 31,257 19,956
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—REH

TEMXERER (EE) AERAF
(TxRAT ) ERENBRE R#EE
RETAER) BRFHEHSEMA
I ZBRAT) e A2 B 5 M 55 62 3
UhEBEXMBRENFRZAF
B -ARBARMNEBHEGRZM
BRAE (TH2Fr)) ERLEHe

KNBAREERAR TEHRBA
ARBEAD T BERHENEEH
HHRFR M 5E26 %27 ©

ARREERR HEBER
NB) AAstrotech Group Limited
(T Astrotech J) > AstrotechZ i 25 /B 4
BRESHMMIIZ RG] FEEAA
F160.64%2 12 o AstrotechF R #E A R
HME (THE)) BAEREFEES N
Al (D EifR)) 2 8% A o
FEMABEERER A (TR
) BRERERAERRAELRE
Z R AT o PR R KBTS
RARBIRR L

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries and associates, the “Group”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report. The
Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 26 and 27,

respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, its immediate holding
company is Astrotech Group Limited (“Astrotech”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which holds 60.64% interest
in the Company. Astrotech is wholly owned by China Academy of
Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), a state-owned enterprise in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Aerospace Science and
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company
of the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC
and CALT are companies established in the PRC.
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e MBHRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIES O

E+_B=+—HIFE

For the year ended 3| December 202/
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules") and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these

consolidated financial statements.

The Group incurred a net loss from continuing operations of
HK$74,140,000 during the year ended 31 December 202! and, as
of 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of HK$2,061,167,000 and HK$1,763,893,000, respectively.
The amount due to CALT amounted to HK$1,439,008,000 as at 3|
December 2021, which is repayable on demand; while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$31,257,000 only as at 31 December
2021.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company have

given careful consideration to the future liquidity and financial position

of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether

the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going

concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the

liquidity position and to improve the Group's financial position which

include, but are not limited to, the following:

()

The Group has been actively negotiating with CALT to obtain
sufficient financial support from CALT to enable the Group to
continue its operations and for not demanding the Company
to fulfill its counter guarantee and guarantee obligations in
respect of the amount due to CALT by the Company as at
31 December 2021 of HK$1,439,008,000 arising from certain
defaulted counter-guaranteed and guaranteed loans borrowed
by a former subsidiary of the Company including interest
payable from CALT and Aerospace Science and Technology
Finance Co,, Ltd. (“ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
which is repayable on demand. On 21 May 2021, CALT issued
the Company a letter undertaking not to demand repayment
from the Company for the aforesaid guarantee obligations and
to provide all necessary financial support to the Company. Such
undertakings are effective for 18 months from the issue date
of the letter On 14 March 2022, CALT issued the Company
another letter to grant extension of the undertakings for further
24 months ending on 20 November 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BECEC —F D A SHIEEE
For the year ended 3| December 202/
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

(i)  The Group has been arranging for settlement of part of the
balances outstanding to its creditors. The Group has ongoing
communication with its creditors, and monitored closely any
settlement requests of trade and other payables. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is expected that the Group
could further negotiate with its creditors and agree on the

settlement arrangements where required.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due within twelve months from the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to

prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above plans
and measures are in progress, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern would depend upon the Group's
ability to generate adequate financing and operating cash flows and
the successful agreement with the Group's creditors of settlement

arrangements where required.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

Accordingly, a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business. Should the Group fail
to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures, or should CALT
no longer have the financial ability to provide finance to the Group,
it may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to reclassify the Group's non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying amounts of the
Group's assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any
provision for any contractual commitments that have become onerous
as at the end of the reporting period. The effects of these adjustments

have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after |
January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR

Reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Group does not have contracts that
are indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to
the IBOR Reform.
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AT REETEEME 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

WEEN @
STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) CHREMERKERZMITRE
EIERMBREEN
AEBRTERBEMERME

RN_E_—F—B—HEBY
B BUEE B 1) oK AR RR RO FT BT R R
BB BV BRSER - ZEM
FIRREIINE RV BREE
A ENTAEEAEREER
RYZER o

have been issued but are

BEMBRESENBN (BITF) £HAH - HSERZRER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination — Reference to the Conceptual

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs that

not yet effective for the financial

year beginning | January 2021. These new and revised HKFRSs

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

R TF RN
2iER%EN
EHIMEN
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning

on or after

“E_"—HF—H
| January 2022

Framework
EBGERE 65 (BF]4X) WE -BRERRE—(FREBRANMERIE “EZ-F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS |6 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended | January 2022
Use

BAEERETR (BITX) BEEAN-BITEANRE
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

EEMBREEN - N\EE_T_ZFFEHANFEIE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle

BB ERE I (BFIX) RN BARDAIFRD

Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

“E_"—HF—H
| January 2022

“E-"%—HA—H
| January 2022

“E=f—AF—H
| January 2023
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3. FAMIREEIIEERE 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
REEN 2 HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) BHEMGEMNKRERZMTRE (b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
EBIIERMBREEN ©) (Continued)
R TFHERE
Z &M%
BHERER

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning

on or after

BB EE IR (BIIX) MBRRZ2IREBMBREERERRAEE2, —FT-_=F-HF—H
SEHEZM B -SSR KE
Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of Financial Statements and HKFRS Practice | January 2023

Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BB GRS (BT A) 5t BR Gt st 2 8B REH -—GstfhstzE ZT=F—HF—H
%
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and | January 2023

Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates

EBGERE 25 (B5T4) PRSI — REEENEERERERNE —T-_=F—HF—H
JERR IR
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and | January 2023

Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction

AEBETTEZEEBITAR The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
M EARBEREASREES the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
EENTE -BEHACDRHA to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
i R FAES] R As] 2RI that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
ROEHGEMBRRENE on the consolidated financial statements.

-2 - L

20 hEMKE R (EE) ARAT ¢ 20214E§
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the

accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 3|
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group
has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity's

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the

practical ability to exercise that right.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
interest retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company's share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as

specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the

Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the

acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum
of the consideration transferred in a business combination to

calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders' proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is

not subsequently reversed.

The Group's accounting policy for goodwill arising on the

acquisition of an associate is described below.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(<)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group
has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder's intention
and financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not

considered.

Interest in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the interest
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate's
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill which
is included in the carrying amount of the interest. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(<)

Associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the interest
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the interest. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the interest subsequently

increases.

The Group's share of an associate's post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net interest in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals

the share of losses not recognised.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(<)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any interest retained in that associate and (i) the Group's
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill). If
an interest in an associate becomes an interest in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and does not

remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates (the “functional currency™).

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB") while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is
the Company's presentation currency. The directors
of the Company consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public
company with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange
where most of its investors are located. All values in the
consolidated financial statements are rounded to nearest

thousand HK$ or RMB except when otherwise indicated.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

99



100

e MBHRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e S 2 S = e Sl TR
For the year ended 3| December 202/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. EFEEHBE @ 4,
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(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) BERHMBREIAZRS (ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

RigER financial statements

SNER BNV R Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into

R BHRZRTERRE the functional currency on initial recognition using the
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THRZERTUHE translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
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translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are measured using the exchange rates

at the dates when the fair values are measured.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iif) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(including associates) that have a functional currency
different from the Company's presentation currency are
translated into the Company's presentation currency as

follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that statement of financial position;

= Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

= All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in

the exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(e)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

Additionally, on disposal of a group entity (including an
associate) which has the same functional currency as
the Company, the exchange differences accumulated in
exchange reserve arising on translation of assets and
liabilities of that group entity into presentation currency
of the Company are transferred directly to accumulated

losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
and are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are

incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress is calculated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as

follows:

3% — 5% or over the

unexpired terms,

Leasehold land and buildings

whichever is shorter

Plant, equipment and machinery 9% — 15%
Wind energy plant and equipment 5% — 15%
Moulds and tools 25%
Furniture and office equipment 10% — 25%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when

the relevant assets are available for use.
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is

the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

®

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both

the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of |2 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily leasehold land and buildings and motor vehicles.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the

lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which

they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of

right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.



tra MBS R ME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FEEHBE @

(n HE@

()

(ii)

FEFEDBEAA (8

EHEEBEELE R
EaNRE T ERENHE
EREBEELELE(THE
18511) » BREAEBKN
HEARE BT EHE
EEBETENME &
ER HEEEREL
BEINHEENRREER
PR 8 BTV AEIR X
EEBITEMBENTE
D — Il 5 72 BRI 73 il % 7
EMEREENEMAE
TRR BEREEAY
RS ERIZE 65255468
BAEN KRt -TZER
O ARERNBEBENB
REFERE | 65 FE46AR
P& AT E /AR
REEE BME T IEHE

B1f&s]o

FEEFEBLHAN

ERERMFAEEAR
HRBEREKEESE
HEAMEEENEEHR
E-HHREREEMRA
M RIBAE D Rk K
bl =& ME A - BIE
ENEARBEHEE-NF
BILER AEEDES

KEHE

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 6. In such cases, the
Group took advantage of the practical expedient set out
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change

in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating

lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL")
in accordance with the policy set out in note 4(u) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration

has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated

contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the

effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities

assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for ECL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement

of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e. the
operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group) that either has been disposed of,
or is classified as held for sale, and which represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the component meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs

when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

which comprises:

= The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;

and

= The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group constituting the discontinued

operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(m

(0)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is

initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9; and

= the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in

accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(9]

(a)

Financial guarantee contract liabilities (Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for

assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to borrowings or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the

cost of the interest.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q9) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from sales of electricity from operation of wind power
field is recognised upon the satisfaction of its sole performance
obligation with its customers (when the electricity has been
transmitted to the customer). The amount recognised is based
on the observable price of the goods in the contracts since
there is no significant financing component and there is no

variable consideration.

Revenue from technical service income from new energy
development operation is recognised upon the satisfaction of
its sole performance obligation with its customers (when the
notice of approval for power plant construction project from the
National Development and Reform Commission is issued to the
customer). The amount recognised is based on the observable
price of the goods in the contracts since there is no significant

financing component and there is no variable consideration.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of ECL allowance)

of the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the service. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of

the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the government-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. Pursuant to
the applicable laws and regulations. The Group could not
use any forfeited contributions to reduce the exactly level

of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(®)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the initial recognition

exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to

settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the fair

value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset or CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU whose impairment is

being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets
of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount
caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to

the extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
and other receivables, contract assets and amounts due from
associates, bank balances and financial guarantee contracts. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective

financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and amounts due from associates in trade nature.

The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that

financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within |2 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are made based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an

assessment of both the current conditions
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group's debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate

to the Group's core operations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

= significant deterioration in external market indicators of

credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

= existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor'’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor; and

= an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is

determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual

cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow

obligations.
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4. FEEHHE » 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
vy TMEERSHEERE @) (u) Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

EEREEEEM (& Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
FEER R GRBERAARNN The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
T& > cMEENIMNBEETR when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
#RER (HMAKEEUSINED in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
AR AIBEENRETRA B external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
N MENIEHFHNHHRK of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a
TLoR iR W A ERRRIE) 0 AR strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

THEERABRBEERR

rEETHEZRAUBEEE The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
[ B B 25 A R 0 RO AR R AU AR used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
Mo MR A S FHEE BT 0 1 credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
MmERBREEEH I RIEE criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
iR EEERmEEEIGMo before the amount becomes past due.
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4. FEGHHE = 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(v TMEERSHEERE @ (u) Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

EHHEE Definition of default

FEERAUTERRAEIE The Group considers the following as constituting an event of

ERMEEENMEBMEN default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical

Bt ARABFRRRARTEU experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the

TR — IR E IR RIE— following criteria are generally not recoverable.

fig &I [a] o

- HFFERMBHEEE; —  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
g counterparty; or

—  WMRBRISBIMPEE = information developed internally or obtained from
MEHER BBARK external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
X 2 BERIBETER pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
AN (BEEEE) EXRE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).
BAREBMFAENEME
Rm) o

WARER LMD KEERD Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

7 HEmMEERRBHEIOXR default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90

AIBNEEL BRIFAERESR days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

FERASRENBTR—EHER information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

BNEARERSBERAERR - is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a

concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

= it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting
date, together with any additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default date determined based on
historical trend, the Group's understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-

looking information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL are estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL are consistent with the cash flows used in

measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS [6.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
[2-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets

for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment

to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when

material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart

from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the financial
support of the intermediate holding company of the Company at
a level sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the
Group. Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and amounts due from

associates which are in non-trade nature

The management of the Group estimates the amount of ECL of
trade receivables and amounts due from associates which are in non-
trade nature based on individual assessment, after considering internal
credit ratings of debtors, forward-looking information, recent trade
relationships, financial background and creditability of individual debtor,
historical settlement records such as default or delay in payments and
aging analysis of such balances and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate. The estimated loss rate applied
is based on the internal credit rating assessed individually taking into
consideration of historical loss rates and forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable, and available to the directors of the
Company without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the loss rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking

information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group's trade receivables and amounts due
from associates which are in non-trade nature and the impairment

assessment of such balances are disclosed in note 6(b).

As at 3| December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
(including bills receivables in trade nature) and amounts due from
associates which are in non-trade nature are HK$38,259,000 (2020:
HK$1,027,000) and HK$4,485,000 (2020: HK$4,450,000) net of
allowance for ECL of HK$460,115,000 (2020: HK$498,681,000) and
HK$ 176,000 (2020: HK$170,000) respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities, i.e. RMB. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise. The foreign

currency risk is not significant to the Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, contract
assets, bank balances, amounts due from associates and financial

guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts
of financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement to cover its

credit risks associated with its financial assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 97% (2020: 100%)
and 100% (2020: 100%) of the total trade receivables due
from the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors

respectively.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2020: 82%) of total amounts due from associates is due from
one associate. The Group monitors the exposure to credit
risk in respect of the amounts due from associates through
exercising significant influence over their financial and operating
policy decisions and reviewing their financial position on a

regular basis.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information about the
Group's credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are

summarised as below:
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
and amounts due from associates in trade nature

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group assesses the potential customer's credit
quality, assigns an internal credit rating and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits and credit rating attributed to customers
are reviewed on a periodic basis. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL

model on trade balances based on individual assessment.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for trade balances arising from contracts
with customers and amounts due from associates in trade

nature.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
and amounts due from associates in trade nature
(Continued)

Management assessed the ECL on trade balances arising from
contracts with customers and amounts due from associates
in trade nature individually by estimation with the internal
credit rating applied to each debtor (based on recent trade
relationships, financial background and creditability of individual
trade debtors, historical settlement records such as default
or delay in payments, aging analysis of such balances and
general economic conditions of industry in which the debtors
operate), subsequent settlements (for credit-impaired balances)
and adjusted for the forward looking information available
without undue costs or effort, including the expected market

competition in the future.

The management considered a trade balance is credit-impaired
when there is event of default occurred. The management
made assessment on trade debtor individually if there is event
of default such as significant litigation proceedings the debtor
involved due to breach of contracts and significant financial

difficulty that the debtor will probably enter liquidation.

However, in certain circumstances, the trade debtors more than
90 days past due is not considered as in default if there is recent
repayment record for those customers and continuous business

with the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers

and amounts due from associates in trade nature

(Continued)

As at 3| December 2021, trade balances arising from contracts

with customers and contract assets in trade nature that were

assessed to be credit-impaired with aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$566,618,000 (2020: HK$566,003,000) were

assessed individually.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group

applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following

table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for

trade balances arising from contracts with customers in trade

nature which are subject to lifetime ECL assessment and are

individually assessed as at 3| December 2021 and 2020.

2021 2020
IRE{E* b RmEE* iR A
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount* allowance amount* allowance
FET FET FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
mE Satisfactory 1,057 - 1,027 =
& ZTHEEEAESHENES © The amount included trade receivables and contract assets from

BRRRERGHEE-
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customers in trade nature.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
and amounts due from associates in trade nature
(Continued)

Quality classification definitions:

“Satisfactory”: The counterparty has moderate default risk.

The estimated loss rate applied is based on the internal credit
rating assessed individually taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable, supportable, and available
to the directors of the Company without undue costs or effort.
Such forward-looking information is used by the directors of the
Company to assess both the current as well as the forecast of

future conditions at the reporting date.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade balances arising from contracts
with customers including trade receivables, contract assets,
amounts due from associates in trade nature under the

simplified approach.

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

137



R EMB BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S e ey = = Sl T

6.

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

TREREE 2

(b) EEAEK ©&)

BEFRITUEHNELHESE
BREKHELGREGHE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
and amounts due from associates in trade nature

=% (8 (Continued)
MM
EHBHR RHATARE
(EXREH EHEBH
wWE (BEHEHAE) @t
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired Total
TET TEm T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
N_E-TF At | January 2020

—RB—H 216,101 [,161,686 1,377,787
BREEEERAE Transfer to credit-impaired (230,002) 230,002 —
EEDREEE Impairment losses

recognised = [,132,494 [,132,494
EEORERE Impairment losses reversed = (8,443) (8,443)
B £0 = 2R Exchange differences 13,901 112,23 126,132
Wi A BB S Deconsolidation

N of subsidiaries - (2,062,994) (2,062,994)
N B DE At 31 December 2020 and

+ZA=+—HkK | January 2021

—E &

—H—H - 564,976 564,976
FER = Exchange differences - 15,082 15,082
MWEBARBUHAS Deconsolidation of

N subsidiaries (51,699) (51,699)
N4 At 31 December 202 |

+-RB=+—H - 528,359 528,359
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
and amounts due from associates in trade nature
(Continued)

As a result of the changing in market environment during the
prior year, the result of the operation had not improved and the
collection of trade balances was below expectation, a significant
credit loss was recognised. The management had considered
the financial position of the counterparty individually and
taken into consideration the change of market environment to
determine the impairment allowance. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the management assessed the exposure at
default for credit-impaired trade balances arising from contracts
with customers including trade receivables and contract assets
by considering the future cash flows that the Group expects
to recover and provided HK$Nil (2020: HK$I,121,801,000)

impairment allowance on such balances.

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the management
assessed the exposure at default for credit-impaired amounts
due from associates in trade nature and provided HK$Nil (2020:

HK$2,250,000) impairment allowance on such balances.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Amounts due from associates which are non-trade
nature

For amounts due from associates which are non-trade nature,
the management of the Group has taken into account the
financial position of the counterparties and forward-looking

information.

For the amounts due from associates which are non-trade
nature of HK$4,661,000 (2020: HK$4,450,000) as at 3|
December 2021, the management of the Group believes that,
save as an impairment allowance of HK$NIl (2020: HK$170,000)
recognised during the year ended 3| December 2021 for a
balance which has significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, there are no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
[2-month ECL. During the years ended 3| December 2021 and
2020, the Group assessed the ECL for these unsecured balances
of amounts due from associates were insignificant and thus no

loss allowance was recognised.
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6. SRMEAMREIR = 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) EERAR @ (b) Credit risk (Continued)
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For other receivables, the management of the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate, for example, the Group has
considered the consistently low historical loss rate in connection
with payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding other receivables is insignificant. The
directors of the Company believe that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on |2-month ECL.
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables were insignificant and

thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank balances

The management of the Group considers the bank balances
that are deposited with the financial institutions with high credit
rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The management
of the Group considers the bank balances are short-term in
nature and the probability of default is negligible on the basis
of high-credit-rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance was

considered as insignificant.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount that
the Group had guaranteed under the guarantee contracts
was HK$Nil (2020: HK$889,341,000) or RMBNIl (2020:
RMB748,505,000) as at 3|1 December 2021.As at 3|1 December
2020, the directors of the Company performed impairment
assessment, and concluded that there has been significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group was measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). However,
no impairment allowance was recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2020 as
the financial guarantee contract liabilities of the Group were
arisen from deconsolidation of subsidiaries as detailed in note
42(b) near 31 December 2020. Details of the financial guarantee

contracts and quantitative disclosures are set out in note 36 and

this note.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The amount of net current liabilities of the Group is
HK$2,061,167,000 as at 31 December 2021, which causes the
Group in significant liquidity risk. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has taken appropriate measures as set out in

note 2 to mitigate such liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the

reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

KR
MEFY  RERR RERE
RRiE %ft OR-fER -E=@A =Z@RE-§ -EIf Ay IREfE
Weighted
average Total
effective On  Lessthan | monthto 3 months to | year to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand I month 3 months | year Syears  cash flows amount
¥ A% FA7 7 FA% A% 27 FA7
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
—%--£ 2021
BAREME Trade and other payables - 706,076 - - - - 706,076 706,076
FEfT—FAREHRRATS  Amount due to an intermediate
holding company - 1,439,008 - - - - 1,439,008 1,439,008
ARAR Lease labiltes 458 - 129 258 1,159 258 1,804 1,753
2,145,084 129 258 1,159 258 2,146,888 2,146,837
ut It 1 2020
ESRAMENZ Trade and other payables - 967,990 - - - - 967,990 967990
i —RPREERATT  Amount due to an intermediate
holding company - 508,564 - - - - 508,564 508,564
IBERANER Financial guarantee contract liabilities = = 362,121 36212 491,008 - 889,341 496479
AEAE Lease labiltes 440 - 129 258 1,159 1,804 3% 3183
1,476,554 362250 36470 492,167 1,804 2369245 1976216

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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6. SHREAMKER =

(d)

FERER

$$H%§¥_$Z—¢&Z

“TEFRIRITER GERM
5532) BREZRERENER
- EEERBEENXRY,

HERAREREEE— Y
SR AR
AEETAZHAEEMN

MsE37) BREAZAFENER
B o EIRE B ) BE A E F g o

FEEEHERME G XER
BRI B A EE 2 LR
ExRRE—H AEBZRER
ENXERETIEZEEPRIEE
REBEMNERPEARRT
HER R RE

R_E_—FERZZEZEE
TIE=+t—H XERUES
Rt BEEREBB BEEEIRA
AEB@MBNRMNEEEMmE
EMHBRBILFAEK -

FlEpE NN e s S = TR
For the year ended 3| December 202/

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances for 2021 and 2020 as detailed in
note 32. The management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuation and will consider further hedging interest rate risk

should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to lease liabilities as detailed in note 37. The

management monitors interest rate exposure closely.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the above liquidity risk section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of PRC Loan Prime Rate and the People’s Bank

of China Benchmark Interest Rate.

As at 3| December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The management
considers that the Group's exposure to market risk for changes

in interest rates is insignificant.
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6. ERMBEMBERE = 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)
(e) W+=-BA=+—HHWEMIA (e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December
e
2021 2020
FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SHEE Financial assets:
B ERAGTEL Financial assets at amortised cost
TREE 83,837 28,114
SRiGaE: Financial liabilities:
B ENAGTE L Financial liabilities at amortised cost
TRaE 2,145,084 1,476,554
FHERENERE Financial guarantee contract liabilities - 496,479
2,145,084 1,973,033
h 2FE (f) Fair values
rERNEREEREREE The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and
REGEHHEIRNR K MIERE financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
BEHRAZRBNATERESA financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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AT E

AFEERAERMTSE2HELH
RAEFRZ T HESEFMRNNREZR
BEARNZBR -UTREZAT
EtEERAATEE®R BRABRS
BUFEBATEZEERMZH AR

BOA=R:
E—4R
WABE .
BT
BWABE
%Ell&
BWABE

AEERFEBNA
BB LARE
ENBRETSZRE
(CREEHRE) o

RE—RAESZR
BLASh - Pl B 12 5
EREREENER
ZERMEHZE@A
ik

TERBREENE
RZEHNMESHNE
AHR-

FEEZHRENBEEHAENSE
BZBERHBEESH B BEBAK
BH=ERERNZ—-

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair

value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into

three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value:

Level | inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access

at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
| that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.
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BE_F_— £+ _F=+—HIEE

For the year ended 3| December 202/

7. AFHHE &

() UBZRAFEHEZEEH

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continved)

(a) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

BR: on level 3:
BATE
AR
2EWEN
EMAE REME st
Financial
assets at Investment
FVTOCI properties Total
TET TET FET
e Description HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NS THF At | January 2020
—H— El 4,800 130,724 135,524
Rigm TR Total gains or losses recognised
uﬁz RO R IR AR ER in profit or loss - (1,238) (1,238)
RET Exchange differences 309 8,340 8,649
M'JLF_E'/Z}THY BH#RE  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
N (5,109) (137,826) (142,935)
S At 31 December 2020,
+ZA=+—8" | January 2021 and
B 31 December 202
—B—Hk
T
+=B=+-8 - - -

RiEmER 2 W o 1842 28
EKFA%ﬁ$$ME@Wﬁ
KEHE 25

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are
presented in other gains and losses in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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W o

FAREBFECEXRGF I RIBER
BEDZRERTRANZIRE D
T

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major

products line for the year from continuing operations is as follows:

2021 2020
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
EAMBREEN Revenue from contracts with
BISREEAZ customers within the scope
REERSH2ZWE  of HKFRS I5
HERBRSES Sales of electricity from operation of
BN wind power field - 26,151
REMAERRBAEEER  Technical service income from
AR FS UL A new energy development operation 9,100 -
9,100 26,151

AEBRBEIRER ZFEKEERS
Wt KRR ED c HE KRB RS
BEZBNORKREMERBEEZN
RAMGARFB AR ER E R PR —E
NEER (MHERBRBEEZE
ANERBRENR  EREREMN
F LB OMERREES MRS
WAZFEZBLERAEEHEN
) AW HANTERER
NERIRBNAIRERERFE R
RERMEERWEM D TEATEA

B

FFEHEGNAN—FAUT -FE
MBREEN B ISKAFAREDE
EZEATHENNLZE-

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external
customers are recognised at a point in time. Revenue from sales of
electricity from operation of wind power field and technical service
income from new energy development operation is recognised upon
the satisfaction of its sole performance obligation with its customers
(when the electricity has been transmitted to the customer of sales
of electricity from operation of wind power field; when the notice
of approval for power plant construction project from the National
Development and Reform Commission is issued to the customer of
technical service income from new energy development operation).
The amount recognised is based on the observable price of the goods
or services in the contracts since there is no significant financing

component and there is no variable consideration.
All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted

under HKFRS 5, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

contracts is not disclosed.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

9. HfttlgA 9. OTHER INCOME
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEREER Continuing operations
RERITEGRZ Interest income from bank balances
F WA 14 69
BT (MsE) Government grants (note) - 1,614
HIBIA Sundry income 606 737
620 2,420
Wizt - Note:

SEBHET (CTTTZFE 121600048 7T) B
BEEHARTE IR EZ i XA S
Bho BRERZ BT (TZ 224 11,398,000/ 7T)
TR E AT /1R 5 R 5 8 R H th i i B
BRI AEEZEBHEURDERIEILE
AR ER (MEER)) ZHE - ZEHEE
MBI B R

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

An amount of HK$Nil (2020: HK$216,000) represents COVID-19 related
subsidies in respect of Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government. The remaining amount of HK$Nil (2020: HK$1,398,000) represents
operating subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for
operation of windfarm and other technology development, and reduction approval
from the PRC tax authorities on Value Added Tax (“VAT"). There are no unfulfilled

conditions attached to those grants.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

10. Hithliasz R iS58 10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2021 2020
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEREER Continuing operations
HEWE R Gain on bargain purchase (note 42(c))
(Bt 5E42(c)) 20,494 =
—FEMEBABEBEAS  Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary
ANERZ W zm (note 42(b))
(it zE42(b)) 295,308 -
HREHE—B#E 28 Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
ZWa (MFEF42(c)) (note 42(c)) 8,953 -
B e S0 S U F ER Net exchange gain recognised 9 1,253
—BER B AT RS Loss on claim from a former subsidiary
B8 (4,149) -
MME--BRERERE Impairment losses recognised in respect
Fesd 2 M ER1E of property, plant and equipment - (668)
TEREEERSTZ Impairment losses recognised in respect
HEEE of right-of-use assets - (2,844)
320,615 (2,259)

. EMEERGNEERES 1. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL,

18 (NP E) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT
ASSETS
2021 2020
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRAREEN Continuing operations
MERBERENZ Impairment losses, net of reversal,
BREREDRZ recognised in respect of trade balances
HERE (0FRERE) arising from contracts with customers - (332,852)
TR — R A E) Impairment loss recognised in respect
BIFBZUERIE of amount due from an associate
B2 RERE which is non-trade nature - (170)
- (333,022
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

12. pEEH

AAEERTESE(NEESBARARE
(TXEEERKE))) ERZER
BENANRNENRIRBRTE 2 EHE
BNEBNE EMPEERL TG
DEXBE - EIRTEAEENATRED
B T ESERREB W EAH A
S D 4EMELE -

RBEZ_—F+ZA=+—HIt
FE - FEBETIMAKLERRS

Do

RZEE - GLERBRGEE
pAY)

MEERAE — RUEMERAE
BE MRS

£ AEBEE—BLERTRE
HE NASEENE- Rt K27
S EE R o

AEENARENDEEHBRERE
il AR EERKRBRT ZFE
HEUDNBBER HABREHBE
B BB B M K 45 He R SR B o

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at

the reportable segments of the Group.

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Group has the

following two operating and reporting segments.

Operation of Wind Farm —  sales of electricity
from operation of

wind power field

Development of New Energy  —  provision of technical
services for new energy

development operation

In prior year, there was only one operating and reportable segment,
being Operation of Wind Farm segment. Accordingly, no comparative

segment information is presented.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because

each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.
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12. REEE =

RENEZ G BREFREMBRE
M st4Pr AR - D BER A BER
DEEMBA KD EE MK @ R &
B -RPETHER MEFLAFE
AREZEHM) MBEFRGHNAER
ER MBHEAKRISREX e
RERENFFENEINEERED
Bk OEBEBRRERSUS
FERKNFEDERRERK - D4R
EETEEBE - ROBRVE BB
Rt~ RO BB 57 K ELA AR R
mE kBN BERERRERRD
RRTHEGERRZ - DEERFERE
RADEBZ REMEMNTR BN —ME
EERAB R BAEIERE
BERERELRBAR.

AEEHDBEHENERETE
RE BNHENBRENE=HE
7' A ERHHERHE

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment results do not include unallocated other income, unallocated
other gains and losses, unallocated administrative expenses such as
centralised corporate expenses and directors’ emoluments, financial
guarantee contract liabilities expense, finance costs and income tax
expense. All share of results of associates are allocated to reporting
segments. This is the measure reported to the CODM for purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.
Segment assets do not include goodwill, unallocated property, plant
and equipment, unallocated trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, current tax receivable and unallocated bank balances and
cash. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated trade and other
payables, amount due to an intermediate holding company, current tax

payable, lease liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales

or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.
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BE-F_SFF T H=i SEHIEE

For the year ended 3| December 202/

12. REEH @

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ERfBRERESENSEE . Information about segment revenue and results:

RREE e R A 5 wa

Operation of  Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Consolidated
FET FET FE7

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HE-E-—-5§ Year ended 31 December 2021
+ZRAZ+—-HLEE

GREEER Continuing operations
WzE Revenue
REIMIR P B Revenue from external customers - 9,100 9,100
£ Results
NiREE Segment results 19,221 8,020 27,241
ROEEEMBA Unallocated other income 620
Rp A e K B8 Unallocated other gains and losses 311,662
RAOETHER Unallocated administrative expenses (11,402)
MHBEREHNER Financial guarantee contract liabilities (399,032)
MR Finance costs (116)
PRI AIES 18 Loss before tax (71,027)

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)

ENNESERABIER Information about segment assets and liabilities:
RiREE MAERm S wa
Operation of  Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Consolidated
FET FET F#T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B=F=-—%+-A=+—H At3I December 2021
BE Assets
NEEE Segment assets 364,432 14,036 378,468
RNEEE Unallocated assets
EN e Property, plant and equipment 71
B2 REMBWR ZE K Trade and other receivables,
N deposits and prepayments 4,439
FE BN #AFR I8 Current tax receivable 574
RTEHRRE Bank balances and cash 9,517
GEEERE Consolidated total assets 393,069
RiREE e 5 A wa
Operation of  Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Consolidated
FET F#T F#T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=L Liabilities
NBER Segment liabilities 4,163 842 5,005
ANEER Unallocated liabilities
BAREMENR Trade and other payables 701,071
FEAT — B R R A B Amount due to an intermediate
holding company 1,439,008
FE{T BN AR I8 Current tax payable 2,228
HEER Lease liabilities 1,753
BERESE Deferred tax liabilities 7,897
HaafRE Consolidated total liabilities 2,156,962
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

12. EEE @ 12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)

HithREEH : Other segment information:
AREE L L -}
Operation of Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Unallocated Consolidated
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BE-S--& Year ended 31 December 2021
+ZR=+-HLEE
FRBEEY Continuing operations
SADBEENEZEE. Amounts included in the measure
of segment results:
FEBA Interest income - - 14 14
NE BERRERTE Depreciation of property;
plant and equipment - - 296 296
RIBZ-% At 31 December 2021
+ZR=+-8
SADBEENEZEE ! Amounts included in the measure
of segment assets:
FREEEEM Additions to non-current assets - - 3 3
REE AR 2R Interests in associates 212,094 - - 212,094
WEFH : Geographical information:

REVHBER AREZEZ DR
R BE IR R 2 D 4RI AL 1S R o

REEEERMNME

Sk

AISEES

i3
hapi
ez

)(E

A g
BHAA

segment are all located in the PRC.

Revenue from major customers:

Operation of Wind Farm segment

Development of New Energy segment

Customer A

No geographic information is presented as the operations of

Operation of Wind Farm segment and Development of New Energy

2021
FET
HK$’000

FiEH
Not applicable

9,100

FEMXERER (EE) ARAF « 2021

Fi
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

13. MERE 13. FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEREER Continuing operations
RITREMERF R Interest on bank and other loans - 262
HERENEMX Interest expense on lease liabilities 116 158
116 420
14. FRA1GIRAI X 4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FREEER Continuing operations
BNER#R 18 Current tax
REEEE Provision for current year 2,601 1,083
BEFEDBEEE Over-provision in prior years - (219)
2,601 864
IRIEFR IS (FT5E38) Deferred tax (note 38) 512 752
3,113 1,616
HRAEERE S _—FK_ZT_ No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group had
EFE+_A=+—HILFETEES no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the
B RBEEZERN AT > LK years ended 31 December 202 and 2020.
SHEREBAN SR AE-
RBE(PREGEMERZE) (REME Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
M%) R ERESREBMEG >+ and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
BB AREBE T _—Fr_FZ subsidiaries is 25% for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
EE+_A=+—HLEFEZRXYH
7425%
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14. FRIEREAX » 14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Fr S0 s E PRI AT B 1R TR AR B &
EFEMREMSZERRNT ¢

as follows:

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product

of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is

2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
REFBREXE 2R Loss before tax from continuing operations
MATEBE (71,027) (346,805)
BHEPEFFSMMZE  Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate
5% (ZEZZF . of 25% (2020: 25%)
25%) stEZIRIE (17,757) (86,701)
BARMBAZ Tax effect of income that is not taxable
RBETE (5) (395)
ARMNRESZ Tax effect of expenses that are
RETE not deductible 101,527 85,800
HEWENG Tax effect of gain on bargain purchase
HNBTE (5,124) —
—HERERF Tax effect of gain on deconsolidation
BUHGRa ARZ of a subsidiary
W H R 8 (73,827) -
REHE —BE=E2 T Tax effect of gain on deemed disposal
ZWmNRBTE of an associate (2,238) -
FELEHE AR EE Tax effect of share of results of associates
MBTE (2,567) (1,825)
AEDGHUERL Tax effect of temporary differences
MBTE not recognised 50 57
PSR ) G- Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
MBTE 2,138 3910
BEFEBERE Over-provision in prior years - (219)
HREITER PRC withholding tax 404 236
REREEE AT Tax effect of temporary differences
R BB attributable to undistributed profits
REREBZMBFE  of PRC associates 512 753
REFBREXETZ Income tax expense from
PSRRI continuing operations 3,113 1,616

158 hEMKE R (EE) ARAT ¢ 20214E§



e MBHRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

I5. SEERBAFEEEERZ 5. LOSS FORTHE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

[5F:= OPERATIONS
2021 2020
FET TH
HK$’000 HK$'000
Z BT &= Auditor’s remuneration
BIHA Current 1,850 2,580
BEFERERE Under-provision in prior year 520 350
2,370 2930
BRABZZHEEMA  Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense - 21,188
ME-BERREZ Depreciation of property, plant and
E equipment 296 12,864
TCREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets - 2,484
EERAMAZ Employee benefits expense
FEEEEM=) (excluding directors” emoluments)
Hr ~ AL R 2 RE Salaries, bonuses and allowances 3,970 8,467
RRER 5t BIHR Retirement benefit scheme contributions 181 899
Hthiar Other benefits Il 1,649
4,262 11,015
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16.

EEROEME 16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICIER’S EMOLUMENTS
REENMEHEINNT ! The remuneration of every director is set out below:
BIRER
g REREM SRR Ly
Salaries Retirement
and benefit scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BiTES Executive directors
ATREE Mr. Liu Zhiwei (note (i)

(M) - - - -
BETLE Mr. Han Qingping - 301 42 343
FREE (H5EG) Mr. Li Lei (note (i) - 242 4 284
IABEE Mr. Wang Guanghui - 194 Zy] 236
il vk Mr. Xu Jun - 194 ry] 236

BiIERGTES Independent non-executive directors
FRERE Mr. Li Dapeng 250 - - 250
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng 250 - - 250
212584 (5 Gi)) Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (note (i) 250 - - 250
ot b 3 Total for 2021 750 93 168 1,849
HTEE Executive directors
AT REE Mr. Liu Zhiwei (note (1))

(HE() - 1,307 38 1345
HETRE Mr. Han Qingping - 1235 49 | 284
ER5EE () Mr. Li Lei (note (ii) - 856 35 891
B bt Mr. Wang Guanghui - 1,006 4 1048
SRS M. Xu Jun - 885 4 927

BIFHGTES Independent non-executive directors
EYN i Mr. Li Dapeng 250 - - 250
BEREYL Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (note (iv))

(Bt 5k (iv)) 54 - = 54
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng 250 - - 250
2125584 (9 5k i) Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (note (i) 197 - = 197

2T DEME Total for 2020 751 5,89 206 6,246

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

0) AEREENR_E_—FWOB+AH

BHEe

iy ZEEER_Z_ZE-RA+/\QE
EEYR _E-_—ENB+AHBE

AR

(i) BEXERZZZZE=F+/\BE

ZiEe

(v) BEEZIR_Z_ZTE£=F+/\AR

FFfEe

FR ReTBABRESZHA R

OFFICIER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

() Mr. Liu Zhiwei resigned on 15 April 2021.

(ii) Mr. Li Lei was appointed on |8 March 2020 and re-designated as Chief

Executive Officer on |5 April 2021.

(i)~ Mr Lau Fai Lawrence was appointed on |8 March 2020.

(iv)  Ms.Kan Lai Kuen, Alice resigned on |8 March 2020.

The chief executive and executive directors waived emoluments during

2 the year as follows:
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AEBREE Mr. Liu Zhiwei 468 503
BETLE Mr. Han Qingping 1,198 138
FRRE Mr. Li Lei 968 173
FrEEE Mr.Wang Guanghui 774 173
RISt Mr. Xu Jun 774 138
4,182 1,125
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17. AiREHMA L

FRAFERLLRSHMALEER
2 (CE2IEF 1) ES Hile

ERBRIIEEI6FT 25 Z D A BR
T=% (CEZZRF 8 ATHME
E 2Tl I

BRH RO
BYRTEAL
RIREF 58I TR

Discretionary bonus

17. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year included
two (2020: five) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in note |6.The emoluments of the remaining three

(2020: nil) individuals are set out below:

2021 2020
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$ 000

Basic salaries and allowances 1,656 _

86 =

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 36 -

1,778 =

18. BIAEFEE

AEEAEBMACENREERILA
wtEAEE 8 (TZEtE)) o %58
ZEERAEREENRGELNE
ERABEEAES - AEE@Zt
B A RR# B A ARSI RR T &
ETEHRIFHR LI AERB
BAHBREARENREERZEE
IMERR T 5T 8

ERBZH BB QB EE 2 PE
NEEZEREBERKEFEIZMK
BoARNBZzHEWB A EERES
HEN S E B D b m R AREN T B H
AU Z S BH o AL B RIABF 5t
B BEEAREZTEEHAME
Z e

BEm IR Z A48 28349,0007% 7T
(ZE -4 1 1,105000%7T) BIARE
BEE"2_—F+-A=+—HIt
FERFEREERENZSHEZ

ke

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

18. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. In
addition, the Group voluntarily contributes extra funding exceeding

minimum statutory requirements to the Scheme.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$349,000 (2020:
HK$1,105,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the continuing operations during the year
ended 3| December 2021.
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19. ERILEERT 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
BE_Z_ZHFF+_HA=1+—HLHF During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group ceased its Wind
ErAEBRRKRIEHRNZEBHRBE®D Energy Related Products operations (i.e. manufacture and sales of wind
wExB RN EEHMER 2R energy related products) due to the bankruptcy liquidation of Beijing
BREE)  RERABILRBRIEAR Energine Industry Co, Ltd. effective on 29 December 2020.
REARZEBZTE+ A TABAR
ERRC
AEEREBELRIEZRNEEHEFE The loss for the year from the discontinued Wind Energy Related
mISEER 2 BEFFIWMT o Products operations is set out below.

WisE 2020

Note FAET

HK$'000

W am Revenue 1,632

W & Al s Cost of revenue (1,370)

EF Gross profit 262

et Other income 17,817

H At s Ko 518 Other gains and losses (67,565)
THEERGNEE Impairment losses, net of reversal,

HERE (NkREE) on financial assets and contract assets (928,937)
HE kDA Selling and distribution expenses (23,355)
THER Administrative expenses (78,638)
IR I %N Finance costs (89,123)
RIEME RN ER Share of results of associates (7,010)
[EheehExE Share of results of joint ventures 63511
PRIRAIRSIR Loss before tax (1,113,038)
MEABEHAEAIRZUE Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries 42(b) 237,728
PRIGIIE Income tax credit 266
FARBE AENN Loss for the year from discontinued operations

FEERBBLEL attributable to the owners of the Company

BEEHZER (875,044)
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19. BRILLEERT @ 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
AFEERBELRILKEER BB Loss for the year from discontinued operations includes the following:
BETRAEE !

2020
FET
HK$ 000
ERRFEZZEERA Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 2,335
ME BB REEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,805
FRAREEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3,665
TAE BB KRR B 2 Impairment losses recognised in respect of
HEEE property, plant and equipment [1,144
iaadcEa Research and development expenses 6,473
HEEERE Write-down of purchase deposits 15,463
HEEFEE Werite-down of inventories 42,777
BE®RHNHAZ Employee benefits expense
e EALRERG Salaries, bonuses and allowances 36,473
IRRRER 58 R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 593
H@EH Other benefits 10,497
BKEF Retirement benefits 2,045
BB A Termination benefits 15,830
65,438
REBRUEKEEBZHTRE ! Cash flows from discontinued operations:
REEHELZ RS R B Net cash outflows from operating activities (89,89 1)
RERHELEZRERANTE Net cash inflows from investing activities 95,107
MEEHELEZRERARE Net cash inflows from financing activities 24,829
RERAFER Net cash inflows 30,045

164 hEMKE R (EE) ARAT ¢ 20214E§
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20. BRREGHA 20. LOSS PER SHARE
RESRBEEBROERLEBEER From continuing and discontinued operations
SREABBENTISEFE ! The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the following:

2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
] Loss
Pt EEREARES Loss for the year attributable to owners
MEZEREEE A of the Company for the purpose of
RERFEREE calculating basic loss per share (76,499) (1,061,359)
2021 2020
4408 4= Number of shares
Pt EEREARES Number of shares for the purpose of
ms KN EE calculating basic loss per share 4,368,995,668 4,368,995,668
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20. FlRESHE @ 20. LOSS PER SHARE (Continved)
REFBEERE From continuing operations
REFBREXEH 2 EREXGEE The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing operations
RTHAEEHE - is based on the following;
2021 2020
FET TH7
HK$’000 HK$'000
518 Loss

et EEREREE Loss for the purpose of calculating basic loss

MmeZEE per share (76,499) (1,061,359)
AEEREERL Loss for the year from discontinued

REXHE B8 operations - 875,044
ThEt IR BRELE Loss for the purpose of calculating basic loss

XN SREANEE per share from continuing operations

mEMNEE (76,499) (186,315)
PRERA D B 8 E el st BB E The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for basic
AEEPTAERER - loss per share.
REBRILLBEES From discontinued operations
%QE%M@%%W@H&HM% Basic loss per share from the discontinued operations is HKNil cents
AHERZTEM (CEZEE 20038 (2020: HK20.03 cents) per share, based on the loss for the year from
il) - ETETFZK@ﬂ%ﬁ/\FEEZKfEf discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the Company of
BRIEREXHERT BT (ZEZ HKS$Nil (2020: HK$875,044,000) and the denominators used are the
Z4E [ 875,044,000 7T) 5t & > FTERAN same as those detailed above for basic loss per share.
MOBE EXFlGEERESER
Fir FB & 18R] o
HRBEZSE - —FRZZTZERF No diluted loss per share has been presented as there were no
+TZA=+—HLEFEARSETE potential ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended 3l
HEBER ALTES5SREEE December 2021 and 2020.
e

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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21. ME-BERRE 21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HELH RE-RF EANEE AR
kigF Rii% HERRS HARIR MAZRR RE HEIR L
Plant, Wind
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture
land and and  plant and and  and office Motor Construction
buildings  machinery equipment tools equipment vehicles in progress Total

TE7 TE7 TET &7 TE7 TE7 TET &7
HK$000  HK$000  HKSDOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSDOO  HK$O00

RE Cost
RZEZZE—F—H At Janvary 2020 15,408 10573 391,848 36,125 20604 18031 3099 495,688
HE Additions 9l - 3155 9 817 - 626 4698
HE /s Disposals/write-off - - (2830) (47) (3267) (4534) - (10,678)
i Exchange differences 1,076 74 26,454 2293 741 732 234 32072
HBARBESEAR  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (16,575) (11315 (418627) (38011) (12,255) (11,385) 3959) (512127
RIZZ%F At 31 December 2020 and | January 202

+ZA=+-Bk

“Z--%-F-H - - - 369 6,640 2,844 - 9,853
HE Additions - - - - 3 - - 3
EREH Exchange differences - - - - 20 - - 20
—BBAZRASE  Deconsolidation of a subsidiary

A - - - (369) (4,477 (1,441) - (6,287)
£H4H (1342())  Business combination (noted 42(c)) 11,594 - 52,966 - 24 604 - 65,388
RIB_-% At 31 December 2021

+=HA=+—H 11,594 - 52,966 - 2,410 2,007 - 68,977
RirERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
RZEZZE—F—H At January 2020 8316 4448 225970 26,055 18477 14816 3099 301,181
FEETH Charge for the year 815 114 17.946 769 770 1255 - 21,669
HE /MK Disposalshwrite-off - - (2.541) (45) 3221) (4247) - (10,054)
HERE Impairment losses - 951 0l 8,670 1,735 225 - 11812
ERER Exchange differences 661 415 15,386 2177 702 658 199 20,198
WEARIALREAR  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (9792) (5928) (256992 (37,257) (11,890) (10,158) (3298) (335315
RIEIEE At 31 December 2020 and | January 2021

+ZA=+-Hk

“F-—%-F-H - - - 369 6,573 2,549 - 9,491
FEELH Charge for the year - - - - | 295 - 296
EREH Exchange differences - - - - 18 - - 18
—MBEABEUESE  Deconsolidation of a subsidiary

N - - - (369) (4,477 (1,441 - (6,287)
RIBZ-%& At 31 December 202

+ZHA=+—H - - - - 2,115 1,403 - 3,518
IREfE Carrying amount
RZB-—%& At 31 December 2021

+=A=+-FH 11,594 - 52,966 - 295 604 - 65,459
RZEZEE At 31 December 2020

+ZB=1+-H - - - - 67 295 - 362
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21.

22.

ME -BRERSHE =

BEZZZHF+HA=1+—HLHF
B> AR —HaEARHERR
BAOEEHEBERDENNE KE
RBEHRAERREI 1440008 7T
REBHEGEAREKEB A &
BRUERDA ZEVNE - BEK
REBTBEELAGBINERTK
> HAl &% (RIEEFREER
BHIRIBEREBLET) HstASo

REME

AEERBECEHEHE—BRES
BoHEMAXN -HENRHARS
205 KB ANER B S EERREE
ERENEHRZE -

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

21.

22.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a former subsidiary of the
Company made impairment losses of HK$I 1,144,000 on its property,
plant and equipment which are used for Wind Energy Related
Products segment. Prior to its deconsolidation from the Group, the
Group concluded that these property, plant and equipment would no
longer generate the level of profitability previously estimated, their
recoverable amounts which have been determined on the basis of
their value in use using discounted cash flow method were estimated

at zero.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leased out an industrial complex under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases ran for an initial period of 20
years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period

held by lessees only.
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22. REME

HRFAEENERBRE BT
EEBSE BEERFERMEER
BIMAZIERE - HESHNL A
BERNREEERK HAFABAR
MG REITEEREZYE

RK—HB—H At | January
ANTERE Fair value losses
fERE%E Exchange differences

B AREUHLZE ABR  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries -

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continved)

The Group was not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases were denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts did not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the

property at the end of lease term.

2021 2020
FEr FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
- 130,724

- (1,238)

- 8,340
(137,826)

KR+ZA=+—H

At 31 December

REMEURTE R-F-TF
NAZTERBEAEEERNEBIL
CEREXMGEMNSEBRETH
EEETEMR-

REEERYENLTER AQF
MEBERETESEEAFEE
P8 A 2 (A E R K A\ B » U 75
RERBYSEREXGEMBEYS
B BUBARERGEEINGE
Riik@ABZ UHEBESYER
EXEREEMER BRZIYE
NRFERBHRE -REFHEZA
TER ARYFEZEERRERRE
BAERIBR

Investment properties, all of which are located in the PRC, were
revalued as at 30 June 2020 on the basis of valuations carried out on
the respective dates by an independent qualified professional valuer

not connected with the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the financial
controller and certain directors of the Company determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. The financial controller works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model. The financial
controller reports the findings to the Board semi-annually to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the properties. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.
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23. ERRERE 23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

TifERE BELMRETF L]

Leasehold

Land and land and
rights buildings Total
FHT FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
RZEZE—HA—H At January 2020 = 6,342 6,342
HE Additions - 3938 3938
nE Depreciation = (6,149) (6,149)
BEHE Impairment losses - (2,844) (2,844)
BRER Exchange differences = I3 I3
MBABEBUEAE AR  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - (1,400) (1,400)

A\ TERTEE At 31 December 2020 and
+ZA=+—Hk | January 202 |
2 —%—-A—H - - -
B0 (f5E42(c))  Business combination (note 42(c)) 27,874 - 27,874
N TET—F At 31 December 2021

+-B=+—H 27,874 - 27,874

EAREBE27,8740008 T (ZTEZE
BB ISR PR Lt ER
FEo

AZE-_—F+"“HA=+—H'B
BRAEEEREEB T (CE 24
3,183,000 ) RIEMNEHAREES
BT (CEITE T8 o HKHA
ARENHEZEEPHNERER I
HEREIENTAEMZE -BE
BEFARARGBRIER.

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

Right-of-use assets of HK$27,874,000 (2020: HKS$NIl) represent land
use rights located in the PRC.

Lease liabilities of HK$Nil (2020: HK$3,183,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$Nil (2020: HK$NIl) as at 3|
December 2021. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.
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23. (FREEE «

BE_Z_ZF+-B=+—HIL
FE AERHEETHRIETFHRE
B HESNEENEEHIIL
AL EENER LEE BESE
FEMER K& o R EERE KT
RO BB ER XEBEERB
BHNERLETE SO 8E HT
WHEARE o b AEBBEAE THA
EREF - AEBAZEMERZD
BaEAEA QEEMAEE LR
WEZEMEERA EfFH—M%
TR BRFEHNMREETED
o WABRETNZEEEMENA
ELEa e

BEREMERE 2 FBHNME
42(a)°

HE_ T TE+_B=+—HLE
B AERRHGHAEEESIERE
E5182,844,0008 70 c A E BT H#Eim
R CAREERFTBEELAMG
TR FIKEE ] EIEEE (RBEHE
FTRHEERAULRRERELET)
FRGER

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group leased leasehold
lands and buildings for its operations. Lease contracts were entered
into for fixed terms of 2 years. Lease terms were negotiated on an
individual basis and contained a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the noncancellable period, the Group applied the definition of
a contract and determined the period for which the contract is
enforceable. In addition, the Group owned several office buildings.
The Group was the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties were not presented separately

as the payments made could not be allocated reliably.

Details of total cash outflows for leases are set out in note 42(a).

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group made
impairment losses of HK$2,844,000 on its right-of-use assets. The
Group concluded that the right-of-use assets would no longer
generate the level of profitability previously estimated, their
recoverable amounts which have been determined on the basis of
their value in use using discounted cash flow method were estimated

at zero.
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BE-F_SFF T H=i SEHIEE

For the year ended 3| December 202/

24. B8 24. GOODWILL
FET
HK$'000
s Cost
2T F—H—H At | January 2020 15,397
Y~ B BB R & AR Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (15,397)
R_TZE At 31 December 2020, | January 202
+-B=+—8" and 3| December 2021
2 —%—F—-HkK
B -F#4+ZA=+—H -
RitRE Accumulated impairment
R ZEZEF—HF—H At | January 2020 13,393
Y /8~ B BB R & AR Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (13,393)
A S At 31 December 2020, | January 202
+-—B=+—H8" and 31 December 2021
:%:—E—E —HK
“E--H+-HA=+—H -
IREE Carrying amount
S At 3| December 202
+ZA=+—H -
AT TEF At 31 December 2020
+=A=+—H -

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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25. B EE

BE_ ==

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

e =R L
For the year ended 3| December 202/

RERT B0 o 31
Development Technology
cost know-how Total
TET TET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(az() (a2
(note (i) (note (i)
773 Cost
/\\_ 2_EF—A—H At | January 2020 70,879 229,741 300,620
TER Exchange differences 4,559 14,778 19,337
Bﬁlﬁ NEEUHER A A Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (75,438) (244519) (319,957)
RIZZEE At 31 December 2020, | January 2021
+ZA=+—8" and 3| December 2021
—8-—4-F-HE
2T —fF
+=A=1-H - - -
BB RAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
EA_ " TF5—F—H At | January 2020 70,879 229,741 300,620
REH Exchange differences 4,559 14,778 19,337
Mﬂ%@ﬂﬁz HiEE AR Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (75.438) (244519) (319.957)
RZE-ZEF At 31 December 2020, | January 202 |
+ZA=+—H" and 31 December 2021
"B —£-F-Hk
“T—fF
+ZA=+—"H - - -
IRME{E Carrying amount
i At 31 December 202 |
+ B=+-H - - -
\TETZE At 31 December 2020
-I-_ﬁ =+t—A8 - - -
Mz Notes:
(i) ZEBEBE_T-NET A (i) The amounts represent costs to develop graphene-based cathode material

=+ —HLEFEBSRIEEE TR
HRER PEZERASHEM

for batteries and high capacity lithium batteries for the Energy Storage and

Related Products segment, which was discontinued during the year ended 3|

(if)

SR 1 e S RS2 Bt AY 8 Al A

ZEREAREERE_S_2F
‘f'fﬁ:‘f'*ElJtEEE%%Jt%%éﬁ
TRNEBSHBER DEZRERK
B4 7 0 534 P E A O RIS

(i)

December 2019.
The amounts represent costs incurred for the technology know-how for

the manufacture of wind turbines for the Wind Energy Related Products

segment, which was discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

26. B AR 2R

N_E-—F+-BA=+—H B

REZFBEWT !

o1

Name

REMARRER
BRAF

China Aerospace
Telecommunications
Limited

PERXER (BB
BRRF

China Energine
(Hong Kong) Limited

NRERARAT
New Image Development
Limited

MEERERAS
Crownpluss International
Limited

ERARERME
SERRRARAR
(Bln=vit sl 3:3))
(Fr=EGi))

Beijing CASC
Energine New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.*
(“Beijing New Energy”)
(note (i)

BRI
REEHE
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

BE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

P
The PRC

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 3|1 December 2021 are as follows:

B&iTlks/
CELLE
lFER
Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
and paid up capital

100007 7T 2 E R
Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

VBT EBR
Ordinary shares of
HK$2

1Bz &ER
Ordinary share of HK$|

|BT2 EEK
Ordinary share of HK$ |

AR #250000007%
RMB25,000,000

27

EitRsEEZE 2

Percentage of equity attributable
to the Company

2021 ‘2020 N

EE RE B2 HE
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
- - 9999% 0.01%

50% 50% 50% 50%

100% - 100% =
100% - 100% =
65% - 65% =

FEEH

Principal activities

DIHEBER
Distribution of
broadband business

DT E R
Distribution of
elevator products

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

PHEFEE
Distribution of
broadband business



26. RMBARZHER =

a8

Name

SR
RESHE
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

MXER (%) @7 ]

ZEFRAA

The PRC

(MERAZ)) (M)
Aerospace Long Yuan

(Benxi) Wind Power Co,,

Ltd* (“Longyuan Benxi")

(note (ii))
TRMRERM f

AIRRARAR

The PRC

(ME A AIRR))
(HFEE())

Beijing CASC
Energine New Technology
Co, Ltd*
(“Beijing New Technology)

(note (i)

* EEHG

et -

RHBEFERzFIIEERE

R ZE G+ AEERER
K2 (REBIRBER40%ER 2 BE R
8]) ZIFEHIE R R —RTE R
BORTEERTRENEZEER
FRHERF A A g & LIEm R IE Rl MR
R EZERN AL RRAZEAR
TEBRZ BB ARALRKe

ERFIHEEAXR EENERERE

E=
TEE

ZHBARFE-

e MBHRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continved)

2RTRE/
SEBRME
BREHE
Particulars of
issued share
capitallregistered

and paid up capital

AR #93800,0007T

RMB93,800,000

AR #10,0000007T

RMB10,000,000

28

EftlRsEEzE 2t

Percentage of equity attributable
to the Company

2021 2020
Ei i E#% it
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
- 40% - -
- 65% - -

*  For identification purpose only

Notes:

FEEE

Principal activities

RFEE
Operation of
wind farm

HAER R %
New energy
development

() Sino-foreign joint entity enterprises registered in the PRC.

(ii) In December 2021, the Group signed an acting in concert agreement

with a non-controlling interest of Longyuan Benxi, an existing 40% owned

associate of the Group, which gives the Group the right to direct the vote

of that non-controlling interest at directors” and equity holders' meetings of

Longyuan Benxi. Therefore, Longyuan Benxi is accounted for as a subsidiary

of the Group.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the

results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
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26. RILB AR 2R @ 26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
TRITAEBRSEAIFEH M #R The following table shows information on the subsidiary that has non-
MEASINER U FHBERBEE controlling interests material to the Group. The summarised financial
HEERLBBMERI SR information represents amounts before inter-company eliminations.

a8 o m bR I REARAIRHE
Name Beijing New Energy Beijing New Technology
2021 2020 2021 2020
FEEENY Principal place of business/country of @ hE hEhE
MM ERR incorporation PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
il fayidin % of equity attributable to
KAz BALT non-controlling interests 35% 35% 35% -
FET FAT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
®+=BR=+—-H: At 31 December:
FRBEE Non-current assets 71 67 - -
MYEE Current assets 2,552 2073 21,986 -
nBBIE Current liabilities (504,514) (489,844) (3,070) =
BEEFE Net liabilities (501,891) (487,704) 18,916 —
REt IR R Accumulated non-controlling
interests (175,662) (170,696) 6,621 -
#Z+=R Year ended 31 December:
=+-HLEE:
Wz Revenue - 30 9,271 -
wH/ (518) Profit/(loss) 151 (462,093) 6,590 -

2mME,/ (%) 8%  Total comprehensive
income/(expense) 151 (462,093) 6,590 =

DEEFIEESEMEZZ  Profit/(loss) allocated to

wH/ (B518) non-controlling interests 53 (161,733) 2,306 =
KEEHEL/ Net cash generated from/(used in)
(FrF) 2 R&F8 operating activities 412 (2452) 9,416 =

SEES (FTA) / Net cash (used in)/generated

ELZRePE from investing activities (N 17 - -
ReRFEEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
gm,/ (el 2% cash equivalents 411 (2,435) 9,416 -
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

26. RIMBAR 2R = 26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continved)

o8 REETE
Name Longyuan Benxi
2021 2020
FTEEEME MBI Principal place of business/country of e/ E
FRTEEIR incorporation PRC/PRC
TEEK Principal activities E%ES
Operation of wind farm
AEEREREAERZ % of equity attributable to the Group
B 40% =
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
®+=ZB=+-H8: At 31 December:
FRBEE Non-current assets 65,388 AER N/A
MEEE Current assets 55,165 @A N/A
i Ii=AE Current liabilities (4,163) AEA N/A
BEFE Net assets 116,390 TE NIA
REt IR R Accumulated non-controlling interests 69,834 AEA NA
#EZ+-A=+—-HL Year ended 3| December:
FE:
&y Revenue FiERA NA AEA NA
il Profit &R NIA TR NIA
SHNGRE Total comprehensive income FiERA NA TEB N/A
NETIFEFHIMER L Profit allocated to
bl non-controlling interests FiERA NA AERE N/A
RETEEEZIREBE  Net cash generated from operating activities FiERA NA TEH N/A
RETEMAZIRE$E  Net cash used in investing activities AERA NA @A NA
REEEMAZIEEFE  Net cash used in financing activities FiEE NIA @R N/A
ReRREZEEMENM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
e FEA NA TR NIA
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26. RMBARZEE @ 26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R_B-_—F+"A=+—H && As at 3| December 2021, the bank balances and cash of the
BB ra XARETENETE Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted
BFRIE£522799,0008T (ZEZE to HK$22,799,000 (2020: HK$624,000). Conversion of RMB into
F 1 6240008 7T) c ARERIRRINE foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
RPESMEERRAIREE - EER Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
HEEEREHRR- Foreign Exchange Regulations

27. RBERAT Z R 27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2021 2020
FET TH7T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
JE bR - Unlisted interests:
NEEEFE Share of net assets 212,094 224,655
RZE-_—F+ZB=+—H'&& Details of the Group's associates as at 3| December 2021 are as
EMEA AR ZEEOT follows:
BRAL HR  ERER A0
Y] RAES M HRRPHE ERsEE2ZERL FERE
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration registered and equity attributable  Principal
Name and operation paid up capital to the Group activities
2021 2020
IERRRANERRERAT  PE AR 133332000070 25% 5% RAREE
(DI&#RRL) () The PRC RMB333,320,000 Operation of wind farm

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind
Power Co, Ltd.*
(“Jiangsu Longyuan”)
(note (i))

EMEREIEE PE A K #438,200,0007 15.35%  1535% EREE
BRAE (TEHERE) The PRC RMB438,200,000 Operation of wind farm
(BIE) ~ (i)

Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co.,
Ltd.* (Jilin Longyuan”)
(notes (i), (ii))
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4

Name

ERMABRM A EH
ARAE ()

Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali
Co,, Ltd* (note (i)

PRRH B (5 B F il
CRIN) BFRAED (B &2 Giii))
China Aerospace
Telecommunications
(Shenzhen) Limited*
(note (iii))

BRAZE (M)
Longyuan Benxi (note (i)

AR OMARBRESME
BRAE (M)

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Materials Co,,
Ltd* (note (i)

* EEHG

s iR
RABEME
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

]
The PRC

]
The PRC

]
The PRC

]
The PRC

i

() RPEFMzTIIEELE-

iy RZITZ—E+-A=+—H 4&&
EEEBRZZRTEZIZERSE
EENGESETmG AL AA
DEEIANERHZEREEX
EEN MZADARASERER
15.35% % 2 BE AT o

iy RPEFMzIIEBEErnE-

R s5E
BRRBHR EfikbEE2ZERLL

Particulars of

registered and

paid up capital
2021

AR 1200000007 -
RMB 20,000,000

A B #60,000,0007T -
RMB60,000,000

AR 93,800,0007T -
RMB93,800,000

AR #78,000,0007T
RMB78,000,000

20.51%

*  For identification purpose only

Notes:

e MBHRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iy s

N = = I EE

For the year ended 3| December 202/

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Group

2020
41.67%

49%

40%

2051%

27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)

FTEESH

Principal
activities

KSR D HE
Manufacture and distribution
of wind turbine generators

BERNHENER

Manufacture and distribution
of telecommunication
products

REZEE
Operation of wind farm

KSR D HE R
Manufacture and distribution
of wind turbine generators

() Sino-foreign joint entity enterprises registered in the PRC.

(ii) The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of nine

directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 3| December 2021.

Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has

significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the entity is accounted for as

a 15.35% owned associate of the Group.

(i)~ Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.
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27. RGEQARIZERD @ 27.

TRITEAEBERBREATNE
e ZEHERATDERRDENGS
MBERERAAR BPHNHBERR
ENUMEARREEAUBTREE
RIR RN BREMEZS] o

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)

The following table shows information on the associates that are
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The
summarised financial information presented is based on the HKFRS

financial statements of the associates.

aiE LERER WA
Name Jiangsu Longyuan Jilin Longyuan
2021 2020 2021 2020
TEEEMY Principal place of business/ HfEhE FE/ RE
BRI R ETER country of incorporation PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
FTEEXK Principal activities RGEE RZEE
Operation of wind farm Operation of wind farm
AEBRGEE % of equity attributable
ERzBNth to the Group 25% 25% 15.35% 15.35%
FET FET FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B+=B=4+—H: At3l December:
FERBEE Non-current assets 508,954 559,937 830,560 867,547
BB E Current assets 174,842 162,573 301,089 288,592
EHiEIR=Li=t Non-current liabilities - - (348) (535,131)
mEaRE Current liabilities (185,778) (262,178) (560,688) (67,285)
BERE Net assets 498,018 460,332 570,613 553,723
AEENEETZ Group's share of carrying
REE amount of interests 124,505 115,083 87,589 84,997
#E+=A Year ended 31
=+—-HLEEE: December:
i Revenue 156,154 122,018 128,342 140,205
EFEERBFEELE  Profit and total
EBREMN K comprehensive income
PHEWNGAEE for the year from
continuing operations 36,676 13,340 600 25,824
BUHEARRE Dividends received from
the associate 3,206 [,672 - -
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BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)

218 RERAE
Name Longyuan Benxi
2021 2020
TESEME Principal place of business/country RERE
SRR X of incorporation PRC/PRC
FEEK Principal activities RIBES
Operation of wind farm
FEBRLRKRE % of equity attributable to the Group
Bmz AN - 40%
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
®+=B=+—-8: At 31 December:
FRBEE Non-current assets FiEA NA 22,624
MEEE Current assets &R N/A 44,937
ki =K Current liabilities FiBA NA (6,123)
BEZE Net assets AiER NIA 61,438
EEEDEERZ Group's share of carrying amount
FREE of interests FiER N/A 24,575
#E+=A Year ended 31 December:
=t+—HILEE:
W Revenue 28,207 AR N/A
EEERBFHELE Profit and total comprehensive income
B RR K for the year from continuing operations
2 E W m B R 2,518 AERA N/A
BIREERBRE Dividends received from the associate 834 REA N/A
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28. BH 28. INVENTORIES
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
ER Raw materials 2,533 =
29. HERAMEWRR BER 29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
iREA DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2021 2020
FET TH7
HK$°000 HK$ 000
ERZY e Trade receivables 498,374 499,708
BREEEEERE Allowance for ECL (460,115) (498,681)
38,259 1,027
oJUs [EIE EHR VAT recoverable - 61
e —REME A E) Amount due from non-controlling interest
FEFE M 1 T FUIE of a subsidiary 4,281 =
Hith Others 6,253 4,096
48,793 5,184
FEEREES N - HEGmAIEH The Group allows credit periods for not more than six months to
EiiRBHETER A BBNEANE its customers for sales of electricity, sales of goods and provision for
BH -HTEENBEAFTHLIER technical services. At the discretion of the executive directors, several
FREEME—FNEEREE R major customers were allowed to settle their balances beyond the

credit terms up to one yearn

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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29. ERREMEKRHR - HER

FlEpE NN e s S = TR
For the year ended 3| December 202/

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

IR @ DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continved)
RBREARBEZEZAN (BEKE The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables without bills
BREER) JnEEAGEERE received, net of ECL allowances, presented based on the invoices dates
BZBZRUWR NBEREESE at the end of the reporting period, which approximate the respective
B 2IREDNNT revenue recognition dates:
2021 2020
FET THT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
30HA Within 30 days 3,977 =
31E90H 31 to 90 days 2,036 -
91 £ 180H 91 to 180 days 1,840 =
181 E365H 181 to 365 days 1,272 -
BE—F Over | year 23,134 1,027
38,259 1,027

AZE-—F+ZA=t+-AR=%
“EE+RA=t+—H FEELE
BERREBENEZ B

AZE_—F+ZHA=+—H'XK
EEESRKFEHEEEREE
34,282,000 7T (ZZ2 ZF 4 1 1,027,000
B WEWEREZT RREEHEA
Mo qu)\EiHH #5857 1932,247,00078 7T
(ZZE T 1 1,027,000 7T) 2@ E
OXFU L EERERERCHE
RAEBEFEREBT R MILZR
BURBABY BREABREREED
BRSO AEBUEANZEERTER
Eﬁ?&#ﬁuu"

The Group did not have trade receivables with bills received as at 3|
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

As at 3| December 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$34,282,000
(2020: HK$1,027,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date. Included in the past due balances of HK$32,247,000 (2020:
HK$1,027,000) has been past due 90 days or more but is not
considered as in default based on repayment records for those
customers and continuous business with the Group. Other than those
balances with bills received, the Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

29.

30.

31.

EaRAEMENKR -BER
™ @)

AEE-RED/FMABIISHABE
BREREEEG RARREBE
R8> BEI S HRBIR — MR EE
B ERTEENBEETRREEH

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables
overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that
receivables that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable,

except for some major customers with longer credit terms at the

ZETEERRRRSI discretion of the executive directors.
BYEHE 30. CONTRACT ASSETS
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
& B DR f# AR Sales of wind turbines and energy storage
1E R E and related products 68,244 66,295
TREIIEEREER Allowance for ECL (68,244) (66,295)
FE WS Bk E 2 B R 31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

MBI EEBIEEE 176,000/ 7T
(ZEZZ4F : 70,0005 7T) BHFT
EREARER REKRREXE
gﬁo

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

All the balances net of allowance for ECL of HK$176,000 (2020:
HK$170,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

32. MITHBRRE 32. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
IRITAERRIZ00I1%E75% (ZEZF Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range
F 1 001%E1.25%) ZRITHIHZEFE from 0.01% to 1.75% (2020: 0.01% to 1.25%) per annum.
FtRe
BITEAREETIUERERERY Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in
SEERLUNE B SHERRIE currencies other than the functional currency of the respective group

entities to which they are related.

2021 2020
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT HK$ 806 9,151
=TT uss$ 1,337 1,367
2,143 10518
ARBRBBIINBEZREIINEEE Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
HhREE - EERMNEEERTR Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
MR o Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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33. HERHEMER

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020

FET T

HK$’000 HK$ 000

=ERZ SN Trade payables 507,338 489,905
HMEL R Other payables 198,738 478,085
706,076 967,990

BERARREZHRZREDHN

The aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice date, is as

T < follows:
2021 2020
FET FET
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
30HA Within 30 days 2,311 -
e —F Over | year 505,027 489,905
507,338 489,905
AERBBRMUEEHBISI0EIOEN The Group normally receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its
E8H- suppliers.

R_E_—F+_H=+—H &&
BzHEMEMREERSEAE—H
RZMBARRE AT (CEIEE!
13,888,00078 7T) ©

34. Eft—RPRIZERAER

BA—BPEERAT
RERZERERE -

A EES

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

Included in the Group's other payables as at 3| December 2021 is an
amount due to a fellow subsidiary of the Company of HK$Nil (2020:
HK$13,888,000).

34. AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE

HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to an intermediate holding company is unsecured,

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.



35.

36.

RIEHEE
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BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

35. WARRANTY PROVISION

2021 2020

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

n—A—H At | January - 328,231
ERER Additional provisions recognised - 660
BAEE Provisions used - (27,694)
BERELR Exchange differences - 20,114
MEBABIEHEA S AR  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - (322,311)
R+ZB=+—H At 3| December - _

REZFBEESREFERR M
ERKZFRESEZREMELEF
mAFAHFHREEFZRE

MEBRFESHAER

The warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

LIABILITIES
2021 2020
FE7T THT
HK$’000 HK$'000
MHRERENEREZ Fair value of financial guarantee contract
RFHE liabilities - 496,479

R_E_TFE+_A=+—H &A
AMAEI R EMAREMBERFTA
AR —BEERBARZETEE
EEAFRRE-—BEERE—BR
HE(REET1,758,472,00078 7550 A R #&
1,480,000,0007T ° iR FEIE(R » W EHE 1R
MR B AR RAETHER AAR
B A7 BIME B N AT BT R i R A 45 B
BREN2BREAMBIEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had a guarantee and a
counter guarantee totalling HK$1,758,472,000 or RMBI,480,000,000
issued to CALT in respect of certain borrowings lent to a former
subsidiary of the Company from CALT and ASTF. Under the
guarantees, the Company was liable for all or any of the borrowings
of each of them from CALT and ASTF upon failure of the guaranteed

former subsidiary to make payments when due.
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36. MBEFASHAR @ 36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

N _E_SFE+_A=+—H ' &KE The maximum liabilities of the Group as at 3| December 2020 under
BREBEFREREREKENTEASHE the guarantee and counter guarantee are the outstanding amounts of
ARBESHRREBENEEREMF borrowings and interest payable at the end of the reporting period
B&51889,341,0005 7 ° totalling HK$889,341,000.

R_BE_—F+"A=+—H &% As at 3| December 2021, the Group did not have any financial
BrmEmMBRRENEE Ba guarantee contract liabilities as all the borrowings from CALT and
KER M AR M BRENREE ASTF were due and defaulted during the year and amounts due under
EERFANEBILEL B HFIER financial guarantee contract liabilities were transferred to amount to an
a ,‘TQTI—FZJT&CTTTAE?%?FH— intermediate holding company (note 34).

B A TR (HEE34) o

37. HE AR 37. LEASE LIABILITIES
REHAMR RIEHERIRZRE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
2021 2020 2021 2020
FET FET FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
—&R Within one year 1,546 1,546 1,497 1,430
—EEmE More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 258 1,546 256 1,497
MEERE More than two years, but not
more than five years - 258 - 256
1,804 3,350 1,753 3,183
W kAkBAFSE A Lessi Future finance charges 51) (167) N/A N/A
HEBREZIRME  Present value of lease
obligations 1,753 3,183 1,753 3,183
B ERR _ Less:Amount due for
EU BNz settlement within 12
’\_TZIE‘ @'Ji% months (shown under
nEAaR) current liabilities) (1,497) (1,430)
1B B ®EHEA4E  Amount due for settlement
(NPA after 12 months 256 1,753
HEaBEMERZMETELEEEE The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
MEAH458% (CEZBE | 440%) © liabilities is 4.58% (2020: 4.40%).
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

38. BEMEAR 38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
it it BEAH
idiik BREME KA REH @t
Revaluation Revaluation Undistributed
of right-of-use  of investment profits of
assets properties associates Total
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZE_EF At | January 2020
—HA—H - 7573 10,260 17,833
FERIBEE (Credit)/charge to profit or loss
(a+ A) /L BT - (309) 752 443
REH Exchange differences = 467 707 [174
Mﬂ;‘@jﬁy A#RE  Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
NS = (7.731) (11,320) (19,051)
RZBZFE At 31 December 2020 and
+-A=+—H | January 2021
.
—HB—H - - 399 399
FREHmRTA  Charge to profit or loss
for the year - - 512 512
ES i Business combination
(it E42(c)) (note 42(c)) 6,968 - - 6,968
BRER Exchange differences - - 18 18
RIBZ—F At 3| December 202
+ZA=+—H 6,968 - 929 7,897

RoB-—5+ZH=+—H 5%

SN —=

B {4 5t

RE R IEEE4I59,160,0007

7T (ZEZEFE 60,685,000 7T) 7]
FREIRIE R ER) o A BRI KR BE
EEHHE;@%IHE;F’Hﬂ%?ﬂﬁl@éﬂé

uu_,\

Bz

RICHMIBEE B ARERIRE
1E54858,364,000% 75 (Z & _2

£ 158,361,000 7t) B R HRAE E

BRAHE

— = —

—

FEZ

JJ%QIEE‘E%EH%E 7__Ei
NECEZEE: B2F " —
v_ﬁfﬁ) LEREH-

As at 3| December 2021, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of HK$59,160,000 (2020: HK$60,685,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$58,364,000 (2020: HK$58,361,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within
five years from 2022 to 2026 (2020: from 2021 to 2025).

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

189



190

e MBHRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e S 2 S = e Sl TR
For the year ended 3| December 202/

39. i@

39. SHARE CAPITAL

Ri#E
Number of &8
shares Amount
FET
HK$ 000
FRREE0. 10T Ordinary shares of
Bidhk HK$0.10 each
‘EE g Authorised:
R_B_BF At | January 2020, 3| December 2020
—B—H-ZEZE and 3| December 202
F+A=+—HBkK
e
+—B=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BORBE Issued and fully paid:
NATECEF At | January 2020, 3| December 2020
—H—H-ZE=F and 31 December 2021
F+ZA=+—HK
—E_—F
+—-A=+—H 4,368,995,668 436,900

AEEEEES URGREEERNS
BREENFELEE HH%D‘T%’E?JETI:

EREABDZ FEAMARRFNER

[B] & ° ZIS%”EM*%E—ifEﬁhT

o

AEEZERRER %E\TE’#EP@
ERM—ETREERAIMKEES
& (10 Eﬁfﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁéﬁ%%&ﬁﬁﬁl
EEARGRD (BREETRE
HEREBER))

AEEEEEEHRANBELARE B
BEEREAHERARERE]
HENERE REHOGERELR
f&o

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
amount due to an intermediate holding company and lease liabilities,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and

accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.
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39. B% = 39. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
SNBHAEBMBEMZEERERS () The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
RUEFRF AR AT BT R £ order to maintain the Company's listing on the Stock Exchange it has
HEBRBNRABRREREAFTDRERM to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet
925%; K (i) & 5T B B B REKT B 31 75 financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.
2k o
rEESBEERMNBRELEIGEH The Group receives a report from the share registrars weekly
BEFRAREREEN 2 TERGRE on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
ART REBTAEER2EN—EH demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
MR LRFEE-R_E-_—F the year. As at 31 December 2021, 39.36% (2020: 39.36%) of the
+ZB=+—H3936% (ZE_F shares were in public hands.

F13936%) ZRIDARBFE

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 191



e MBHRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BECEC —F D A SHIEEE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

40. ZATIMBERARRHES 40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

L)) AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) FREMBKRER (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
2021 2020
FET T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HE ASSETS
ERHEE Non-current assets
ME BB RE Property, plant and equipment - 295
FREEE Right-of-use asset - -
MEARER Interests in subsidiaries 158,512 158,512
JEREE EAE Total non-current assets 158,512 158,807
RENEE Current assets
HthEIR - 2E &k Other receivables, deposits and
LN prepayments 2,946 3,674
eI — P B A Bl FR Amount due from a subsidiary 18,801 23,608
RITERRIRE Bank balances and cash 1,263 I1,147
REBEEME Total current assets 23,010 38,429
= LIABILITIES
bt bR Current liabilities
HAEI R Other payables 2,103 4,571
e — R P AR Amount due to an intermediate
NCIE holding company 1,439,008 508,564
WBEREHNERE Financial guarantee contract
liabilities - 496,479
HESRE Lease liabilities 1,497 1,430
RENBEAE Total current liabilities 1,442,608 1,011,044
mEaERE Net current liabilities (1,419,598) (972,615)
ERBHaE Non-current liabilities
HEESE Lease liabilities 256 1,753
JERE B FRAEE Total non-current liabilities 256 1,753
afERE NET LIABILITIES (1,261,342) (815,561)
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40. ZATIMBIRARKHES 40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
8@ AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(@) TARHFERIAR @) (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)
MiaE 2021 2020
Note FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
i EQUITY
B R Capital and reserves
[ Share capital 436,900 436,900
#fE Reserves 40(b) (1,698,242) (1,252,461)
SR TOTAL DEFICIENCY (1,261,342) (815,561)
Kt - note:
REFZENR _E__F=HA=+—H Approved by the Board of Directors on 3| March 2022 and are signed on
HE THUATEEAREE . its behalf by:
nET il
Han Qingping Xu Jun
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

40. BATMBIRRR R HEE

L N

(b) FAFMBED

E+_B=+—HIFE

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

Rl  HUEE EREE  RHER 1]
Share Special Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
FET  FEr  FEn TET TEx
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RIZZZF—FA—H At/ Janvary 2020 2,732,397 86971 = (3,048487) (229,119)
FRBEREABZAE  Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year = = = (1,023342) (1,023342)
RZIFZRE At 3| December 2020
tZA=+-Bk and | January 202!
“Z_-%-F-H 2,732,397 86,971 - (4071,829)  (1,252,461)
FRBEERZEFEZEE  Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - (34,933) (410,848) (445,781)
RIEZ—% At 31 December 202!
TZRA=+— 2,732,397 86,971 (34,933)  (4,482,677)  (1,698,242)
41. {#f& 41. RESERVES
) T£H (@) Group
rEEREERHEHEINGRS The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein
BakEMM2EREREAES are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
BamEERET - and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
(b) REEHERAE (b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) RGEE (i)  Share premium
RHASEERRERE Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
1D m B AR AT 0k T A< share premium account is available for distribution to the

NERE > KRR B R
REERZEDKBE &R
AENNEARERER
TEAREZEHEIBNG
o

shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company is in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business of

the Company.
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41. #E =

(b) HEEEERBZE 2

(ii)

B

KEBZRBIRERRERA
AR ETRAMBRAR
AIFTIEANBARE %
TRAEEZEZERRE
BAEER—AAEE
NB+—BESTEAM
HEMEESEZRE
| 16,025,00078 7t & E HE 53
REMNEBEE_ZE—1E
+TZB=+—HILFER
Bo

(i) EREFE

EREEERRENE
MR B EBMEEN
P SN BE R E 58 o 3%
BHhREEHBERRM
F4(d) (i FTE B ST BUR R
Ho

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

41. RESERVES (continved)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)  Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company and the aggregate amount of HK$I 16,025,000
transferred from other reserves pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation on || August 1997 and the amount of
dividend recognised and paid for the year ended 3|
December 2015.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

4(d)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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42. FERERERME

() WMREBHZARHBE

TRFNFEEREZHZE
F”E’Hﬁﬁ%ﬁé&%ﬁ%

HMERBELEZERNE
HREREBARKBEZRER
REEBEFEERERERTS
BEnRELREREZ AR

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

FEd—%
LIS JEERBERR
(GtABRR HEaR GIABRR
HAthFE{I7R) &8 (MsE37)  HAFERTR) B
Amount due
to a non-
Interest controlling
payable shareholder
(included in (included in
trade and Lease trade and
other liabilities other
payables) Borrowings (note 37) payables) Total
FHT FET FHT FHT FHm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZIZEZE At | January 2020
—A—H = 1,754,002 6,441 = 1,760,443
MBERERE Financing cash flows (50,213) 69,604 (6,170) = 13221
HIRRH% Interest expense 89,236 = 308 = 89,544
BEZEMN—R  Transfer to amount due
FRREERRAGF  to an intermediate
holding company (7.828) (500,736) = = (508,564)
HETHA New leases entered - - 3,938 - 3938
BERKE Dividend declared = = - 950 950
EREZH Exchange differences 1,931 116,724 117 53 118,825
B AR Deconsolidation of
BUHARE AR subsidiaries (33,126) (1,439,594) (1,451 (1,003) (1,475,174)
RZZE"TH At 31 December 2020
+ZB=+—H and | January 2021
RZZEZ—F
—A—H - - 3,183 - 3,183
MERESMRE  Financing cash flows - - (1,546) - (1,546)
HIRR® Interest expense - - 116 - 116
MZZZ—% At 3l December 202|
+-A=+—-H - - 1,753 - 1,753

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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42. FERFRERME @

(®)

MEBARNERS AR

RZE—F+—-RA+B &2
A—ENBARRERAENE
EREABRKEEBSF AR
REASGBESINFE-
I AEBAAHEESE M
HEEBRFBHEEARNAER -

REGHEREARABZE8ER
BT :

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continved)

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

On 10 November 2021 a subsidiary of the Company was
wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong by way of
a creditor's compulsory winding up following the formal
appointment of its liquidator on the same date. The Group,
therefore, lost control over it which was then deconsolidated

from the Group.

Net liabilities at the date of deconsolidation were as follows:

2021

FET

HK$’000

RITREBRRE Bank balances and cash 99

R INEN Other payables (295,407)

I ANEYNCIEA Amount due to the Company (434,818)

BB B AREERE Net liabilities deconsolidated (730,126)

FRPRIE T R A B Release of amount due to the Company 434,818

—RNEBARBUEGE AR ZUE  Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary 295,308

MEFEEE Total consideration -
BUBGREARELENIREMEIEEE . Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation:
BUHAREARNIRERITEEME/Y)>  Cash and cash equivalents, comprising bank

BIERITRERERS balances and cash, deconsolidated 99)

AN AR & B B IR EE | 9P »
P /NS Rl 1 VT D N = e
“EE+-BAZt+ABERZE
EEEARERBEETRE
BREMUIL AEEREHERK
HEBBTEENZES MEL
BIABRAARNREER-

As referred to in note |9 to the consolidated financial
statements, a former subsidiary of the Company was under
bankruptcy liquidation effective on 29 December 2020 following
the formal appointment of its liquidator on the same date. The
Group, therefore, lost control over it and its subgroup entities

which were then deconsolidated from the Group.
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For the year ended 3| December 202/

42. FERFRERME @

(b) MEBARMEES AR (Z
REHGAEARBHZERE

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continved)

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (Continued)

Net liabilities at the date of deconsolidation were as follows:

BNT:
2020
T
HK$ 000
e Y e Property, plant and equipment 176,812
REME Investment properties 137,826
EHAREE Right-of-use assets ,400
e Goodwill 2,004
REE AT 2 B Interests in associates 6,217
REEhE#HE Interests in joint ventures 1,006,954
BEATESFARMEEKE 2 Financial assets at FVTOCI
THEE 5,109
=75 Inventories 7411
B RHEMBUR ZEKRTEAM  Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments 853,454
€ A—FN=IE Amounts due from associates 2,667
Ul —EEaEhER Amount due from a joint venture 18,719
BIRFRITER RITERRIEE  Pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash 61,668
B 5 K H MR Trade and other payables (1,288,257)
N —EPEERABMR Amount due to an intermediate
holding company (508,564)
FABE AR Amounts due to associates (28,483)
BHEERER Amounts due to joint ventures (3,095)
BT BN Government grants (27,934)
RIEEH Warranty provision (322,311)
P iRIE Taxation payable (1,801)
= Borrowings (1,439,594)
HE&E Lease liabilities (1451)
ELERERE Deferred tax liabilities (19,051)
BUHGRa AREREE Net liabilities deconsolidated (1,360,300)
JEERIMER Non-controlling interests (42,331)
WEARBUHAS AREEMNE®RE  Labilities arising from deconsolidation
of subsidiaries [,189,478
R—EBEABD 2 REBETZ Fair value of interest in an associate retained
ANTE (24,575)
A B BUHAR S ARG Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries 237,728
(MEREEE Total consideration =
BB A AREENIREREFEE . Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation:
BB A ARNIRERINEEEY > Cash and cash equivalents, comprising
ARERTEERES bank balances and cash, deconsolidated (61,659)

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR
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42. 28

(<)

RERERME 2

EBaH

TR —F+ "R FEER
RERAEZIFERIMEERT L
— TP BT AEEERE
BEZZEZRREFEANG
& LETZIFERMEEDRE
ZHER R BERARERE
3 aialing PNSIUNG

At AEBRERAZZER
DIRBEHEEZEXFSHBBER
REANEZEEREZATE
EWHE MAMEEZBRAY
EREIRAZE 2 U 58,953,00078
TERBE_ZE_—F+_A
S+ BHLEFEZEEERR
FREERR o

REHEHABAEERER
EREZREREZ A TERK
HEEEFBHRANT

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continved)

()

Business combination

In December 2021, the Group entered into an acting in concert
agreement with a non-controlling interest of Longyuan Benxi
which gives the Group the right to direct the vote of that non-
controlling interest at directors” and equity holders’ meetings of
Longyuan Benxi. Therefore, Longyuan Benxi is accounted for as a

subsidiary of the Group.

The Group's interests in Longyuan Benxi accordingly were
remeasured based on the fair value of its pre-existing equity
interests in Longyuan Benxi as at the date of business
combination and a resulting gain on deemed disposal of
Longyuan Benxi of HK$8,953,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Details of the fair value and carrying amount of the Group's
pre-existing equity interests in Longyuan Benxi as at the date of

business combination are summarised as follows:

2021
FET
HK$’000
REREAEZEEREZ A TE Fair value of pre-existing equity interests

in Longyuan Benxi 34,424

RERRZZREREZIRESE  Carrying amount of pre-existing equity interests
in Longyuan Benxi (25,471)
HEHE—EBE LBz WG Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 8,953

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

199



R EMB BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BECEC —F D A SHIEEE
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42. FERFRERME @

() EHBa# @

REBGHBBRRERREZZA
B BEERERZAFEIT

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continved)

(c) Business combination (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Longyuan

Benxi as at the date of business combination was as follows:

2021

FET

HK$°000

Y EN e ] Property, plant and equipment 65,388

EREEE Right-of-use assets 27,874

Py Inventories 2,533
B RHEMBNR ZEUK Trade and other receivables,

SEINEN deposits and prepayments 39,869
FEUR BN ERTR IR Current tax receivable 574
RITHEGFRIRE Bank balances and cash 12,189
B 5 Kk H MR Trade and other payables (4,163)
RERBEE Deferred tax liabilities (6,968)
mAEANRZEBERE Net assets consolidated 137,296
TR M Non-controlling interests (82,378)
HEWENE (W) Gain on bargain purchase (note) (20,494)
REBRE BRERERRZ Total consideration, satisfied by fair value of

FEEREZ AFEZY pre-existing equity interests in Longyuan Benxi 34,424
XBEWEEZRERAANTE ! Net cash inflow arising on business combination:
REARZREERRTEEY, Cash and cash equivalents, comprising

BREIRTERAIRE bank balances and cash, consolidated 12,189
Mzt Note:

ZEWRERDEERHNILEREZ
EHEaHTHEEBRIRUAFE

The gain on bargain purchase was primarily the result of the recognition of

the right-of-use assets at fair value in connection with the purchase price
EREAEBERR -EREEESR
— (BB 75 B S (B R T B £ it e
e PRC without consideration.

allocation under the business combination of Longyuan Benxi. The right-of-

use assets represent land use rights granted by a local government of the
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43. BMEALZRZ SRR 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
PRz & MBIk R P EHthith 75 B R In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed
FHRABAIRZ RERN ER elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
FEERHEBEALTBETIEARS following significant transactions and balances with its related parties
KA ER during the year:
) BHREHFHEREEZRS (a) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC
AEEREFRBPREBFN AL The Group operates in an economic environment currently
s HEEFSITEEARE predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly
7]2?55 (THFERER) = controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
ZRBIRIETRE o boh > & (“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself
%%Z&%’%‘FEEEPHBZWW%H is part of a larger group of companies under CASC which is
ZHRBETZRAREIER controlled by the PRC government. CASC and its group entities
TREKEEEERAEAT are collectively referred to as CASC Group.
fiBeEm -
() BEPfEEFZXKS (i)  Transactions with CASC Group
(h BEZZTZ—F (I) During the year ended 3| December 2021,
+ZR=+—HLt interest expense on the above loans charged by
FE>NFERM L CALT to the Group amounted to HK$Nil (2020:
MER@AEEK HK$40,791,000).

REET(CEE
£ : 40,791,000 7T)
ZH BB o
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43. BREATZZ R RER @

() BHTEHFEREREZRS

(#)

(i) HBFHBRERZXS (&)

(1)

(#)

BEE_Z_-_—&
F=E =4=E It
FE MARKMHE
LEFEAE
BWEREET (CF
ZE4E 43,901,000
BT ZHMERE
It o> BEETH A
REZT (ZTEE
£ 1 153,158,0005 7T
g AR #136,761,000

7T REBTHIAR
ME T (ZE_F

£ 1 470,472,000 7T
@Z}\EWQI 439,000
) ZEFD A ER
AEE B R kAR (fF
BIERAN) BE-

(i) BEMKFEEZXS

()

REE_ZE_—&F
+-_R=+—HLt
FE EBRTHA
EMEE( E i
£ 1 8931,0005 T8¢
A E#8,000,00073)

BERCEETH
BRABZIEERE
%o

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(@) Transactions with government-related entities in the

PRC (Continued)

(i)  Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

(1

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
interest expense on the above loans charged
by ASTF to the Group amounted to HK$Nil
(2020: HK$43,901,000). In addition, loans of
HK$Nil or RMBNiIl (2020: HK$153,158,000 or
RMBI36,761,000) and HK$Nil or RMBNIil (2020:
HK$470,472,000 or RMB421,439,000) were
repaid by the Group and by CALT, as a guarantor,

respectively.

(i) Transactions with other government entities

(1)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a loan
of HK$Nil or RMBNil (2020: HK$8,931,000 or
RMB8,000,000) was repaid to a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary.
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43. BREALTZZ R RER @

() BHTEHFEREREZRS

(&

(i) BEMKFEEZXS

(&

2

75 B 78 B H I
NERBEREED
ER-EARDEER
= A ERRRE
ZEBERMS &
SHNERBEEY
BEILE=F 4%
BTAETERR
HEBBEETESR
R EEIXR B
BEHTHMN k&
ERXGEEBAH
it B AT AH A BB S

TEBFIIER

5N > A EE BB B
REBEREZR?T
AURERS B
7 REBDR1T77
M BB FEEE
REX 5 e

BE_E-—F+_FA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 202/

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(a) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(i) Transactions with other government entities
(Continued)

)

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related
entities are independent third parties so far as
the Group's business with them are concerned.
The Group also has certain sales and purchases
transactions with certain customers and suppliers
in which the directors are of the opinion that
it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of
the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions are with other government-related

entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits are with government-

related entities.
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43. BRAEATZZ R RER 2

(b) BEMAEALZRS

() FBEEEWEEARR A
EXliEE]R

(i) ER> FEBERHMES

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties

(i)  For amounts due from associates, please refer to note 31.

(i)  During the year, the Group had the following significant

ATZEARRZUT : transactions with its other related parties:
2021 2020
FET TH7
HK$°000 HK$'000
REREREZ Interest income from joint ventures
ISV ON - 3,723
RE—RBERT Interest income from an associate
Z M BIA - 1,288
m—ERRNE Technical service fee to
NEIZfMZ a fellow subsidiary
BT & 415 =

(iii) TEEBASZHH
TEEEANBERELR
BHRTEFRINTFRS
ZF IR B HEE 160

TEEBASZHMEH

MESERFEARER
BB EE °

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

(i) Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel include solely
the executive directors of the Company and the

compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 6.

The remuneration of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.



MEERRE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+-RA=+-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
TERT TERT THERT TERT FERT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
(4 E7))
(re-presented)
(Hzt) (Hzt)
(Note) (Note)
GREEER Continuing operations
X Turnover 263414 59,116 25,972 26,151 9,100
PR RIS 18 Loss before taxation (228,252) (1,233,464) (42,769) (346,805) (71,027)
RE Taxation (5,165) (580) (1,265) (1,616) (3,113)
AEERBFE Loss for the year from
REEH BB continuing operations (233417) (1,234,044) (44,034) (348421) (74,140)
AEERBERLE Loss for the year from
REEH BB discontinued operations (14,531) (96,102) (1,011,445) (875,044) -
AEERE Loss for the year (247.948) (1,330,146) (1,055,479) (1223,465) (74,140)

Mz BIERBEEEENES BRER
EEBRR_Z_TEEHEAER
IR  —E—NENEERSE
o E-E-EEY 2 AN

Note: Included results of wind turbine manufacture operations whereby its operations

were classified as discontinued operations in 2020. The results of 2019 have been

re-presented to conform to the presentation of 2020.

®+=B=+-H

At 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FTAET FTET TERT TERT FTER
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

RERAR ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

BEME Total assets 5,845,669 4274430 3,131,967 254,607 393,069
BERE Total liabilities (3,744791) (3.571,273) (3,482,754) (1976615 (2,156,962)
BEFE (BEFE)  Net assets (liabilities) 2,100,878 703,157 (350,787) (1,722,008) 1,763,893

Annual Report 2021  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

205



206

HER
GLOSSARY

(TR _ERFREFAE]
2022 AGM”

TE])
“Annual Report”

=78

“Articles”
[ Astrotech |
"Astrotech”
e il
“Auditor”

EZEEE)
“Audit Committee”

B8
“Board”

PNl

“CALT"

A,
“CASC"

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

AABRRZTBZ"FA=TH (BHM) BTHNRRAERE
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30 June
2022

FABBE_T_—F+ A=+ HLEENEERS
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021

A QR AMER (ETFE)

the articles of association of the Company as amended from time to time

Astrotech Group Limited’ RN E BT R ST MAIINER AR 2K
At BB AT
Astrotech Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT

2 UNSIPIN: 2 Gk P S = R et
the external auditor of the Company, RSM Hong Kong

EEXECERZEZEY
the Audit Committee of the Board

ARBEEE
the board of director(s) of the Company

MEES N AR RPBRIINAE HARABSREERRKR
PEMANSER A2 EHE

rh B 48 & N AT R AT A 22 B (China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology),
a company established in the PRC which is wholly-owned by 1 B i1 K& &£
B /A B (China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation), the ultimate

controlling shareholder of the Company

FEMARERERAR RPEMINABILAEARREERRR
B f AR E BB RA B (China Aerospace Science and Technology
Corporation), a company established in the PRC and the ultimate controlling

Shareholder of the Company
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“Company”

TAEE]

“Companies Law"

MbxERTa
"CG Code”

TR

“China” or “PRC"

&%)
“Director(s)"

TESGHR &
“ESG Report”

TREE ) o MM,

“Group”, or “we" or “us”

BTl
K

r&#)
“Hong Kong"

A%
GLOSSARY

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (FfFBIf K& RE L (&)
BRAGY RASHESEMMLNERAR  HEFRBAERLS
(B A7 X5% - 01185)

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the securities of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01 185)

RERERRZEENE (—AR—FEWEH KEEREN (EXRE
Bl BRI UEM A TUEDN)

The Companies Law (Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised)) of the Cayman Islands as amended, supplemented or otherwise

modified from time to time

Lo RAM B+ A E R ER T

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules

TEARANE ERAERME  FEEEE - PEARLMERP
BATHERE Y

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report
only, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's
Republic of China and Taiwan

ERBES
director(s) of the Company

ARERE - HERERRS

the environmental, social and governance report of the Company

ERBRENBAE

the Company and its subsidiaries

BREEERAET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FEARAMEEBFHTHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of
China
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HER
GLOSSARY

FEmARAL
“Listing Rules”

MR SAl
“Model Code"

RLEER)

“Nomination Committee”

FZEEE)

“Remuneration Committee”

Eoe=pil
“Reporting Period”

TAR#)
“RMB"” or “Renminbi”

M58 75 RS R Bl
“SFO”

M5
“Share(s)"

TRER
“Shareholder(s)"

TE 32 FR )
“Stock Exchange”

*EHEE

* for identification purpose only

HEMAERER (@) BRAE » 2021FR

EBMARZMAERABES LHRA
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

EHRAME TS LEHETAEFTETESFRZIRETA
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out

in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules

EXERRZEE

the Nomination Committee of the Board

EXEHINEES

the Remuneration Committee of the Board

BE_T_—HF+_B=+—HLEFE
the year ended 31 December 2021

REEE S
the lawful currency of the PRC

BBEOES7T I EEFRIEHRG (ERRET BRI UEME IE
£%)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AABRAPEREEI0BTHRG
share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company

ROFEA
the holder(s) of Shares

BRMERZPERAT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited



CHINA

ENERGINE

From Engine to New Energy

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
hEMXERER(SE)EBRLT

Tel &3 1 (852) 2586 1185
Fax & : (852) 2531 0088
Email EBE  : energine@energine.hk

Website 4841k : http:/Awww.energine.hk

Unit 2301, 23rd Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza,
1 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BEBFAZERERESNAKIE23E2301E



	封面
	企業文化
	目錄
	公司資料
	集團財務摘要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員之個人資料
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告書
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務資料摘要
	詞彙表
	封底

